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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the |
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting |
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its
loss including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended |
on that date. |

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the
[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

5.R. Balliboi & Co. LLF, a Limited Liability Parlnership with LLP Identily No. AAB-4294
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidaie the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, m istepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been
paid/provided by the company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 41 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entitics (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s} or entity(ies}, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
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Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, securify or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Chugh
Partner
Membership Number: 505224
UDIN: 22505224AVSWKT8792

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Apeejay Smrendra Park Hotels Limited (‘the company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

i) a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets

b)

d)

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The Title deeds of immovable properties disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements are held
in the name of the Company except Immovable properties amounting to INR 10.15 crores as
indicated in the below mentioned cases as at March 31, 2022 for which Title deeds were not
registered in the name of the company and hence we are unable to comment on the same. Further,
immovable properties to INR 9.82 crores as indicated in below mentioned cases are mortgaged
with lenders and their title deeds are not available with the Company and the same has not been
independently confirmed by the Bank and hence, we are unable to comment on the same.

Descripti Gross Held in name of Whether Period held Reason for
on of carrying promoter, —indicate | not being held
Property value director or range, in the name of
(INR in their relative where Company
crores) or employee | appropriate
Land 10.15 Gemini Hotel & No 20-21 year | Title deed for
Holding Limited . which
registration 1s
pending
Land 8.38 Lake Plaza Hotels No 10-11 year | Mortgage to
Lender
Land 1.44 Andhra Hotels No 42-43 year | Mortgage to
Private Limited Lender

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made

thereunder.
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iy a)

b)

iii) a)

b)

d)

The Company management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed on such physical verification and have been properly dealt with in the
books of account.

As disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks and financial instifutions are in agreement with the audited books of accounts of
the Company.

During the year, the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties as follows:

Guarantees | Security | Loans (INR | Advancesin
in Crores) | nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year

- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Others NA NA 0.86 NA

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above
cases

- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates NA NA Nil NA
- Others

During the year, the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, mvestments and
guarantees to companies are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has granted loans to companies that are repayable on demand. The Loan demanded
during the year have been received. Having regard to the fact that the repayment for loans
outstanding at the year end and payment of interest, wherever applicable, has not been demanded
by the Company, in our opinion the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are
regular.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.
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f)

Vi)

vii) a)

There were no loans granted to companies which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, tirms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Loans, investments, guarantees and security i respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues have generally been reguiarly deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, undisputed dues in
respect of luxury tax and value added tax which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as follows:
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Statement of Arrears of statutory dues outstanding for more than six months:

Name of the Nature of | Amount | Period to Due Date Date of
Statute the Dues ; (INR In | which the Payment
Crores) amount
relates
Delhi Tax Luxury | Luxury 0.18 | FY 2015-16 | June 26, 2020 | Not yet paid
Act 1996 Tax
Delhi Tax Luxury | Luxury 0.60 | FY 2016-17 | June 26,2020 | Not yet paid
Act , 1996 Tax
Delhi Tax Luxury | Luxury 0.01 | FY 2017-18 | March 29,2021 | Not yet paid
Act 1996 Tax

b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory
dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount | Demand Period to Forum where
Statute the Dues (INR In | Paid under | which the | disputeis pending
Crores) Protest amount
(Crores) relates
Finance Act, | Service Tax 4,39 0.64 2004-05to | Customs,  Excise
1994 2008-09 & and Service tax
2010-11 Appellate Tribunal
NDMC  Act | Property Tax 52.05 - 2017-1810 | New Dethi
1994 2021-22 Municipal Council
Kolkata Property Tax 10451 - 2015-2022 | Kolkata Municipal
Municipal Corporation
Corporation
act 1980
Delhi Value | Value added (.43 - 2012-13 to | The Department of
Added Tax, | Tax 2015-2016 | Trade taxes
2004 Government of
' NCT of Delhi

viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the -
Company.

ix) a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.
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X)

xi)

Xii)

xiii)

b)

c)

d)

e)

a)

b)

a)

b)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans and other borrowings were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of ils
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)() of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv)a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b)

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.
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XV)

xvi)a)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve

Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report

Xvii)

Xvii}

Xix)

xx) a)

on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to INR 4.06 crores in the current financial year
and amounting to INR 32.25 crores in immediately preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 53 and disclosure in note 52 to the financial
statements, the ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our atiention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transterred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in
note 47 to the financial statements.
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b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements.

For 8.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

[

per Amit Chugh
Partner ¢
Membership Numbei: 505224 ecassd
UDIN: 22505224AVSWKT8792

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF APEEJAY SURRENDRA PARK HOTELS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Apegjay Surrendra Park
Hotels Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financia} controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the mternal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

GRS,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
vecorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Chugh

Partner

Membership Number: 505224
UDIN: 22505224 AVSWKT8792

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2022



Apzejay Surrendra Park Hote
Standalone Balance Bheat as
(Al ameunts in INR Crores, unlsss othenwise stated)

Asat Asat
Notes 31 March 2022 H March 2021
ASSETS -
Non-current assets
Properly, planl and equipment 3 819.37 §37.24
Capital work-in-progress 3 28.51 27.45
inveslment properlies 58 140.68 141.44
Other intangible assets 4 5048 52.35
Right of use asset BA 120.48 114.61
investment In subsidiaries a8 0.03 0.03
Financial Assels
Investments 7 0.02 0.02
Leans 8 9.13 8.26
Qlher financial assels 9 3.09 3.02
Non current tax assels 10 6.24 343
Cther hon current assels 11 10.69 11.25
1,188.72 1,189.11
Current assets
invenlories 12 9.60 8.56
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 13
Cash and cash equivalenls 14
Other bark balances - 15
Loans 16
Other financial assels 17
Cther current assets 18
Totai assets N
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capilal 18 747 17.47
Other Equity
Other equity 20 489.80 515.04
Total equity 506.97 £36.51
on-current liabilities
Financia! lfakillies
Lease liabiliftes 21 20.69 13.35
Borrowings 22 476.84 468.60
Other financlal [abilittes 23 - 0.03
Provisions 24 7.03 792
Delerred lax liabiliies (net} 25 20.:1 3317
524.57 522,47
Current !iabhilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilites 28 4.08 211
Borrowings 27 144.80 123.72
Trada payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small erderprises 28 1.76 213
(b) Totai outslanding dues of creditors olher than micre enterprises and small enterprises 28 3572 42.21
Other financtal liabilities 28 21.12 18.80
Provisions 30 8.81 8.75
Cther cumrent liabilities a1 11.81 8.39
227.70 206,11
Total iabilities 752.27 728.58
Total equity and liabilities 1,259.25 1265.09
Corporate infermation & summary of significant accounting policies 1&2

The aceompanying noles are an inlegral part of the standalone financial statements.
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Apecjay Surrendra Park Holels Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in INR Crores, uniess otherwise stated)

Notes For year ended For Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{ncome
Revenue from conlracis wilh cuslomers 32 24345 169,75
Other Income 33 41,18 11.88
Total income 254.63 181,65
Expenses
Consumption of provisions, beverages, winesfliquor and smokes 34 34.34 2645
(Increaseldecrease in Invenlories of finished goods - {0.10)
Empioyee benefit expenses 36 62.72 53.62
Finance costs 36 59.33 56.14
Depreciation and amortizalion expense 37 38.31 36,18
Other expenses 38 103.08 79.78
Total expenses 297.78 252.05
{Loss) before exceptional items and tax (43.15) (70.40)
Exceplional items - 15.07)
(Loss) before tax {43.15} {85.47)
Tax expense 25

Deferred {ax income (13.27) (10.49)
Tetal Tax Income {13.27) (10.49)
{Loss) for the year {29.88) (74.88)
Qther comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurements gain/{losses) on defined benafit obligalions Q.44 112
income lax effect on above 011 {0.02)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.33 1.14
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {29.55) (73.85)
Earnings per equity share

Basic & Diluted 39 {1.71) {4.29}
Corporate information & summary of significant accounting policies 182

The accompanying noles are an inlegral parl of the standalone financial staternenis.

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Apenjay Surrendra Park Holels Limited

Standalone Staterment of Cash Flows for the y2ar ended 31 March 2022

{All arnounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
A, Operafing activities
Profit before tax {43.15) {85.47}
Adjustments to reconcile Profit before tax fo net cash flows:
Deprecialion and ameriizalion expense 38,31 36,16
Interest on advances, deposils and tax refunds {1.69) (3.00})
Finance costs 59,33 56.14
Lass on disposal f sale of langible assets 0.82 0.25
Bad debis / advance wrilten off 0.10 0.70
Liabilities ne fenger requirad vurilien back {2.69) {2.42)
Net {galn}ioss on loreign currency lransaction - {1.07)
Amarlization of deferred Revenue - 0.06
Brovision for doubliul debls na longer required writlen back - {0.09)
Provision for doublful debts and advances 0.19 249
511 3.74
Changes in Working capital :
{increase) / decrease in irade receivables o (0.40}
Dacrease f (Increase) in other financial assets and other assels (8.95) 15.12
{Increase) /Decrease in invenlories 0.13) 1568 -
(Dacrease)l in lrade payabl 4.17) 2.28
Increase f {decreasa) In other financial liabililies, olher fiabllilies and provisions 17.85 3.81
4.61 22.49
Income fax refund {2.81) 0.03
Net cash flows frem cperaling activitfes {A) 53.02 26.268
B. Invosfing activities :
Purchase of properly, planl and equipment and intangible assets including capital work in progress, capilal credilors and capilal advances (24.17) {40.29)
Praceeds from sale of properly, plant and equipment 0.88 010
Loans received/(given} back during the period 360 14.59
Investmenl in sushsidiary - {C.01}
Funds placed in fong-term deposils with bank {D.05} .22
Inlerest income received 1.05 1.60
Net cash llows used in investing activities {B) {18.68) {24.23)
€. Financing activitles :
Proceeds fram non-current bormowings 1177 65.56
Praceeds from curent borrowings 15.38 31.7¢
Repaymenl of non-curent borrowings (33.51) (36.81)
Repaymenl of cuirent borrowings {6.29) (30.71)
Payment of lease Eabifilles {4.31) {2.16)
Finance cosls paid {67.35) {33.68}
et cash flews from i {used in} financing astivities (C) {34.31) {5.190)
Net increasel[decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis (A+B+C} .02 3,08}
©Cash and cash equivalenis al Ihe beginning of the period 6.48 9.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 652 5.48
Cash and cash equivalents comprise {refer rote 14 and note 30} :
Cash on hand 1.09 0.885
Cheques on hand - -
Balances with banks:
- Balances vith banks on curent accounis 5.65 5.81
Book overdraft {0.38)
Changes in ffabilities arising from financing activities
Pariiculars Balance as at 1 Adjustment on account . ElR Balance as at 31
i lof N E .
April 2021 ash Rows of moraterium xchange dilferences adjustment March 2022
Nen Current Bomowings 541,18 18.25 - - 1.78 561.14
Curmrent Borrowings 3142 9.20 - - - 4061
Loan Repayable on Demand 19.80 {0.10}| - - - 19.70
Tolal liabilitles from financing aclivities 592,32 27.35 - - 1.18 621.45
Particulars Balance as at1 Adjustment on account " EIR Balance as at 31
April 2020 Cash flows of meratorium Exchangs differences adjustment March 2021
Non Current Borrovdngs 491.16 29.66 19.62 1.07 {©¢.41) 541.10
Current Bomowings 18.66 $1.06 1.70 - - 31.42
Loan Repayable on Demand 29.79 {9.99} - - - 19.80
Total liabilities from financing aclivities 539.61 30.72 21.32 107 {0.41) 592,32

Corporate information & summary of sigaificant accounling policies {Refer note 1&2)
The accompanying notes are an inlegral parl of the slandalene financiat statements.
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Apeniay Surrendra Parl Hotels LimHed
Statement of Changes in Equiky ios the year ended 31 March 2022
Al amatints i1 INR Crares, unisss alherwise staled)

a, Equity share capilal

Increase / [Decrease)
Balance as on 1 April Increase f {Decraase) Balance as on 31 in equity share
Partioulars Note reference s P in equity share capital n i " Balance as on 31 March 2022
2020 . ) March 2021 capital during the
during the pariod N
pericd
Equity Share Capitat 19 1747 - 17.47 - 17.47
h. Other equity
Parliculars Reserves and Surplus
Note reference Capital Redemption ) . General Relained Totat
Securities Premium .
Reserve Reserve Earmnings
Balance as at 1 Aprii 2020 20 141 183.8% 78.74 328.94 592,90
Loss far the year - - - (74.98) {74.98):
Other comprehensive incoms:
Remesasurement of defined benefit obligations (et of lax) - - 1.14 1.14
Balance as at 1 April 2021 20 1.4 163.81 76.74 255,10 518.06
Less for the year - - - {29.88) (29.88)
Olher comprehansive income:
Remeasurernanl losses of defined benefil obligalions (net of lax) - - 0.33 033
Balance as at 21 March 2022 20 141 183.81 78,74 225.55 489.50

Corporate information & summary of significant acceunting policies {Refer note 182)

The accompanying notes are an inlegral padt of the standalene financial slalemsnis.
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Apesjay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Corporate information

Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 27 November 1987. The Company is a
pioneer of luxury boutique hofels in India and is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and
managing hotels under names “The Park Hotels, The Park Colleciion and Zone by The Park". It is a public
corpany domicifed in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the Company is located at 17, Park Street, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700018.

The standalcne financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of
Directors dated 27 September 2022,

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have haen prepared in accardance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requiremenis of Division [l of Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The accounting pelicies have been consistently applied except for changes in
accounting policies mentioned in Note 2.3 (). Further, the standalone financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except cerain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values.

The standalone financial statements are presented in INR Crores, except when otherwise indicated and all the values are
rounded to two decimal places.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a} Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance shest based on current! non-current classification. An asset is
reported as current when it is:
- Expscted to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle of the Company,
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realized within twelve months atter the reporting period, or
_ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setfle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting pericd.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
- ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
it is held primarily for the puzpose of trading,
- ltis due to be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
The Company classifies alt other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and Habilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for pracessing and iheir realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has estimated its operating cycle to he 12 months.




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Moies to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

b} Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected 0
measure all of its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carrying value (deamed cost).

Cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset ta its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. Subsegquent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, onfy when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Cempany and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
renovation is carried out related casts are capitalized, where considered appropriate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying value of related assets for discard.

Subseguent measurement (depreciation and usefu lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any. Depreciation on praperty, ptant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefut lives of
the assets.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of building, plant and equipment and other items of Praperty, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which
are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule |l io the Companies Act, 2013. The management helieves that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likety to be
used.

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life (in Estimated Useful Life _(in
years) as per Schedule li ﬁizfé)sm?nt per fechnical

Plant & Eguipment and Electrical Installation 15 20

Office Equipment 5 5

Buiidings* 50 30-100

Furniture & Fixtures 15-20

General 10 15-20

Used in hotels and restaurants g 16-20

Vehicles

General 10 )

Used in hotels and restaurants P 8

Computers:

Servers and networks 6 8

Desktops and Laptops 3 36

“Depreciation on building canstructed on leasehold land is restricted to lower of useful life of balance period of leasehold
land or usefu fife calculated based on 100 years.

Depreciation on deemed cost of other properiy, plant and equipment {except land) is provided on pro rata basis on
straight line method based on useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Leaschold land is
depreciated over the term of lease.

The residual values, useful lives and methad of depreciation are reviewed at the end of sach financial year and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. s




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recegnized is derecognized upon disposal/
discard or when no future economic benefits are expected from iis use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
agsel) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

c¢) Capital work-in-progress

Capital worl-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss, if any, Cost includes development costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure,

d) Intangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. On transition to Ind AS, the Campany
had elected to measure all of ite infangible assets at the previous GAAP carrying value (deemed cost). The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset fo its working condition for the intended use. The useful lives of intangible assets (Computer software) are
assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Computer Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third party vendors, is capitalized. Subsequent costs
associated with maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license feas
and cost of implementation / system integration services, where applicable.

The useful life is as follows:
Asset category Uselut life (years)
Computer software | 5

Intangible assets with finite fives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amoriization period and the amertization method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each repotting period. Changes in the
expected usaful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embedied in the asset are
considered fo modify the amortization pericd or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortization expense con intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Subsequent measurement (amortization)

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period of & years from tha date of its acquisition.

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference bhetween the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt cf the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
asset is derecognized.

e} Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controffed by the Company. The Company controls its subsidiary when the subsidiary is
expased, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those

returns through its power over the subsidiary.

The consideration made in determining whether significant influence or joint contrel are similar to those necessary to
determine control over the subsidiaries.
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Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
No'es to the Standalone Financial Siatements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’.
Where the carrying amount of an invesiment is greater than its estimated recoverable amaunt, it is assessed for
recoverability and in case of permanent diminution provision for impaiment is recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss.
On disposal of investment, the difference between tha net disposal proceads and the carrying amount is charged or
credited 1o the Staterant of Profit and Loss, For any benefit provided to a subsidiary, such benefit is fair valued and the
difference between such fair value and contracted charge is adjusted to the carrying value of investments in that
subsidiary.

f) Inventories

Inventories comprise provisions, baverages and smokes, wine and liquor, crockery, cutlery, glassware, linen, etc.
and stores and spares and other operating supplies such as stewarding, engineering equipment, etc. Inventories are
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs includes purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditicn,
Cost is determined an weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs that have to be
incurred in connection with the sale.

g) Revenue from contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue

Revenue from confracls with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expacts to realize in exchange for ihose goods
or services and no significant uncertainty exists as regards the ultimate collectability of such consideration.

The Gompany has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Pursuant to the application of Ind AS 115 — ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' effective from 1 Aprit 2018, the
Company has applied following accounting policy for revanue recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods and services:

Revenue includes room revenue, food & beverage sale, wine & liquor sale, banquet and other ancillary services.
Performance ohligations in contracts with customers are met through the stay of guest in the hotel or on sale of goods and
on rendering of services as per the terms of contract with the customer.

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation and is recognized net of discounts,
any entittements that may accrue to the customer for subsequent utilization and sales related taxes in the period in which
the services are rendered. The Company collects value added tax (VAT) and Goods and Service Tax (GST) on behalf of
the government. Therefore, these are not economic behefits flowing to the Company and hence excluded from revenue.

In relation to laundry income, telephone income, internet income, health club income, spa services and other allied
services, revenue is recognized on accrual basis on rendering of such servicas,

Revenue in respect of customer loyalty entitlements are recognized when such entitlements (loyalty points) are
either redeemed by the customers or on its expiry.

Other Operating Revenue:
Other operating revenues are recognized as follows:

- Revenue from hotel management fees are recognized on accrual basis on rendering of related services
as per terms of underlying arrangements,

- Exports entitlerments [arising out of Served from India Scheme (SF1S)] are recognized when the right to receive
related benefits as per the terms of the schemes is established in respect of the exports made by the Company
and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collectability of relevant export proceeds.

- For other operating revenue from shop rentals, refer Note 2.2{0)




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Stataments as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Other Income:
Other Income is recagnized as and when it acerues.

Contract balances

Contract asseis

A vontract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration ar bafore
payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
tima is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets with respect
to initial recognition and subsequant measurement in Note 2.2(p).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services ta the customer, a contract fiability is recognized when the payment is made or the
payment is dua (whichever is earfier). Contract liabilities are recagnized as revenua when the Company performs under
the contract.

h) Borrowing costs

Barrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, canstruction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other
barrowing costs are expensed in the periad in which they cceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

i) Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date, where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating
to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periadically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax for the year. The
deferred iax asset is recognized for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit can be carried forward. In the year in
which the Company recagnizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss
and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the "MAT credit entitlernent” asset at each reporting date
and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probabte that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred fax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of taxable temporary
diffarences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
he contralled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differances, carried forward unused tax credits, any
unabsorbed losses and tax benefits to which the Company will be entitled lo on expected disposal of immoyable




Apeejay Suriendra Park Hotels Limited
Notrs to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

preperties. Deferred tax assels are récognized ta the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
tonger prabable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 1ax asset to be utilized,
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recegnized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates thal are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized, or the liability is setlled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside pro'fit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales/ value added taxes/ GST pald on acquisition of asseis or on incurring expenses

Expenses and income are recognized net of the amount of Sales/ value added taxes/Good and services tax paid, except:
When the tax incurred on & purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

_ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

j)y Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('€') which is also the functionat and presentation
currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Fareign currency fansaclions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical
cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlernent of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-menetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency ara
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss asising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recagnition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation differances on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss
are also reccgnised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).
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k) Retirement and other employee benefits
Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contriution plan. The Company deposits its monthly
contribution with the Regicnal Provident Fund Commissicner in accordance with the Employees' Provident Funds and
Miscellanecus Provisions Act, 1952 and the Company has no further obligation in this regard. The Company recognizes
conribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an ermployee renders the related service. If the
_ contribution payable to the schems for service received hefore the balance sheet date exceads the contribution already
paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance shest date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a postemployment benafit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The company operates a defined
henefit graluity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made 1o a separately administered fund, The liability
recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance
sheet date, togeiher with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined
benefit/obligation is calcudated at or near the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using lhe projected unit credit
method. This is based on standard rates of infiation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined
close to each year-end by reference to market yields on government bonds that have terms to maturity appraximating the
terms of the related liability. Service cost on the Company's defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits
expense. Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability is included in finance costs. Actuarial gains/losses
resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in Other comprehensive income in the period in which they
oceur and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Compensated absences

Liahility in respect of compensated absences hecoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance
sheet date is recognized on the basis of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to
be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences hecoming due or expected to be availed more
than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged o Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

1) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reparting date, the Company assesses whethar there is any indication based on internal/external facters, that an
asset may be impaired. |f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGL) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not gensrate cash inflows
that are largely indapendent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and
the impairment loss is recognized in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate fhat reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation medel is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation muliiples,
quotad share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calcutation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and forecast
calcuiations genarally cover a period of five years. For longer perieds, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied ta
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount i reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously. recognized are
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accordingly reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shart-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management.

n) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) bacause of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits will be reguired to seitle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or alt a provision to be
reimbursaed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is reccegnized as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit
and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific fo the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

These estiméies are raviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
- Obligations in respect of which outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable but possible
and such outflow which will be confirmed anly by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
_ Preseni obligations arising from past events where an outflow of resources embodying aconomic benefits is
probable but the amount of that obfigation cannot be reliably estimated at the reporting date.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

o) Leases

Ind AS 116 requites the Company to assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or coniains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recoghizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
rapresenting the right te use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabifities. The cosi of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives raceived. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
loase term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land 30 to 99 years
Building  1to 28 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers te the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calcuiated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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The right-to-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer note 2.2 (I).
ii) Lease liahilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises tease liabiliies measured at the prasent value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the pericd in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

in calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencament date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
{erm, a change in the lease payments {.g., changes tc future payments resulting from a change in an index or raie used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company's lease liabilities are included in Note 22 and Note 27 respectively.
iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Gompany applies the short-ferm laase recognition exemption te its short-term leases contracts including lease of
guest houses {i.e., those leases that have a tease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognifion exemption to leases of office
equipment like printers taken on lease etc. that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basls over the lease term.

The Company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 116 which came into effect on 1
April 2018, and all the related figures have been reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the reguirements of Ind AS 116.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accountad for on a straight-fine basis over the lease terms
and is included in the Staterment of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the tease term on the same basis as
rental income. Centingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Prior to Ind AS 118, a laase is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an aperating lease as per Ind AS 17.
A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as
finance lease.

Finance leases, which effectivaly transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments under such leases are apportioned between
the finance charges and reduction of the lease liabilly based on the implicit rate of return, Finance charges are
recognized as finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unlass they are directly atiributable to qualifying assets in
which are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs, Contingent rentals are
recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
assel, However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company wil obtain the ownership by the end of lease term,
capitalized leased assels are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retainad by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are racognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The impact on account of adoption of change in accounting policy to ind AS 116 has been disclosed in Note — 2.3(i).
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p} Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financiai liakitity or eguity
instrument of another entity.

" 4} Financial assets

Inftial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assefs contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivabies that do
nat contain a sighificant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amoartised cost ar fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interast (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

Tne Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in ordar ta
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets carried at amortized cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met: :

The asset is held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold asseis for coltecting contractual cash flows;
and

_ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI} an the principal amount cutstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method.

ii. Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries— Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 ‘Separate financial Statements’.

jil. Investments in other equity instruments — Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an
irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, oh an instrument by instrument basis, to classify the same either as at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts
presantad in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or foss. However, the Company
transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represenis a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Campany has transferred its rights to recaive cash flows from the asset.




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes fo the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Impairment of financial assels
In accordanece with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash fows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, disceunted at the original effective interest
rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Caompany is
required to consider — ' ' i '
_ Al contraciual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the
assets. :
_ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

(i}  Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Gompany applies the simpiified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement
of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit Josses are the expected
credit losses that rasult from al possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

(iiy Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal 1o 12-manth expected credit losses, else at an amount equal o the
lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a defaull ocourring over the expected life of
the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default oceurring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Coempany assumes that the credit risk on &
financial asset has not increased sighificantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit
risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measuremeant

All financial fiabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and berrowings and payables, net of
directly atiributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, foans and borrowings and financial guarantee
contracts.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial fiabilifies are measured at amoriized cost using the effective
inferest method.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recagnition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by laking into account any discount or premium gn acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance | Sis Inthé Statement of
Profit and Loss. ot
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For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipls over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or io the amortized
cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credi losses.

3) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracis are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified party fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance datermined as per impairment requirements of ind-AS
109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expires. When an
existing financial kability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

4) Reclassification of financial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequant. The Company's senior management determinas
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's
aperations. Such changes are evident to externat parties. A change in the business model accurs when the Company
either begins or ceases o perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in busiress model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

5) Offsetting of financial instruments

Finahcia) assats and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enfarceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and sattle the liabilities simultaneously.

g} Fair value measurement

The Company measures its financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that
would be received o seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account & market pariicipant's abifity to generale economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participan t would use the
asset in its highest and best use. . ;
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All assets and liabilities far which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniquas for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable ' ' '
For assels and liabilities that are recognized in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Gompany
datermines whether fransfers have accurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the
jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reparting period.

Management caries out the valuation based on its experience, market knowledge and in fine with the applicable
accounting requirements. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Refer note 50)
. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Refer note 50)

Investment in unquoted equity shares (Refer note 50}

_ Financial instruments (including thase carried at amortised cost) (Refer nate 50)

r) Government grants

The government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all
attached conditions will be complied with. The Company imporis capital goods and avails concession for custom duty
under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (‘the Scheme’). The guantum of duty concession availed is added to the
carrying value of the particular property, plant and equipment and a corresponding deferred income recognized. Based on
the terms and conditions of the Scheme, the grant received is to compensate the impart of cost of assets subject to
export obligation prescribed in the Scheme. The grant is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the basis of
fulfilment of related export obligation as prescribad in ITFG issued hy ICAl (Institute of Chartered Accountants of India)
through clarification Bulletin 11.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current/current liabilities
as deferred income and credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expecled lives of the related asseis and
presented within other operating income.

s) Business Gombination

Business combinations are accounted far using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controliing
interests, if any, in the acquiree.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the Habilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date
fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they
are measured at their acquisition fair valuas irrespective of the fact that oulflow of resaurces embodying economic
penefits is not probable. However, the deferred tax assets/ liabilifies, and the assets or liabitities related to employee
penefit arrangements acquired in a business combination are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12
Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employece Benslits respectively.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and kabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, ecenomic circumstances and pertinent conditions
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as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives, if any, in host contracts by the acquiree.

Where saitlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
at which a similar barrowing could be abtained from an independent financer under comparable terms and conditions.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-cantrolling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
tiabifities assumed. After initial recognitian, goodwill is measured at cost less any accurnulated impairment losses. For the
purpose af impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated o each
of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assignad to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. H the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recagnised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequeni periods.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reparting period in which the
cambination oceurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as
measurement pericd adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one yaar from the acquisition date.

f) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period. The weighied average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a
rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equily shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

u) Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company'’s standatone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures.

Significant management judgements

Racognifion of deferred tax assels — Tha extent 1o which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized,

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected
life, the management assesses the expecied credit toss on outstanding financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could resutt in deterioration of recoverable amount of
assets.

Provisions including contingent liabilifies — Legal proceedings covering a large range of matters are pending against the
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Company. Due to uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is aften difficult to predict the final outcomes. The cases and
claime against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many
uncertainties and complexities, including but net limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim,
the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law, in the normal course of business, the Company consults with legal
counsel and certain other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined
that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse
outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclesed. Accordingly, at each balance sheet date
basis the management judgmeni, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of
provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future oulcome may be different from this
judgement.

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable asseis - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporiing date, based on technical assessment of the remaining expected useful
lives of depreciable assets carried out by an independent valuer. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and
aconomic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, martality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variafion in these
assumptions may significantly impact the DBO ameunt and the annual defined benefit expenses. Related year end
ohEgations are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair valua of financial instruments
(where active market guotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination opfions ~ Company as lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any pariods covered by
an aption to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Campany applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it 1o exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event ar
change in circumstances that is within its controf and affects its ability to exercise or net to exercise the option to renew or
to terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasshold improvements or significani customisation io the leased assat).

Extension opfions (or periods afier termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended {or not terminated). Extension options in given in some of the guest houses to the lessee, which
have been included in the lease liability because company requires the guest house for future period, location of guest
house is prominent and lease rentals are reasonable. There is no future cash outflow in respect to extension and
terminatian option which is not included in the lease liability.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

i} INDAS 116 Leases

ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 ‘Leases’ including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of ind AS 17
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invalving the Legal Form of a Lease). The standard sets oui the principles for
the recognition, measurament, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessee's to recogniza most leasas on
{he balance sheet. )

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases
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as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as i Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 did not have an
impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospactive method of adoption with the date of initial application
of 1 April 2019, Under this method, the standard is appfied prospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to not
ta reassess whether a contract is, or contains lease at 1 April, 2019. Instead, the Company applied the standard only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application.

The Company elected o use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a
lease ferm of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option {‘short- term leases’), and laase cantracts for which
the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets’).

Nature of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116

The Company as a lessee has entered into various lease contracts, which includes lease of land, office space, club,
restaurant and guest house. Bafore the adopticn of Ind AS 118, tha Company classified each of its leases {as lessee) at
the inception date as either a finance lsase or an operating lease.

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurernent approach for all leases,
except for short-term: leases and leases of low-value assets. Refer Note -2.2(0) for the accounting policy adopted by the
Company fram 1 Aprit 2019. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which have
been applied by the Company.

Arrangements which were previously classified as lease

Upon adoption of ind AS 116, the Company elsct to use the transition practical expedient to not to reassess whether a
contract is, or contains lease at 1 April, 2018, Instead, the Company applied the standard only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 at the date of initiat application.

Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Company did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial
application for leases previously classified as finance leases (i.e., the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities equal the
lease assets and liabilities recognised under Ind AS 17). The requitements of Ind AS 116 were applied to these leases
from 1 April 2019.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases
The Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease fiabilities for those leases previously classified as operating
leases, except far short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any relaied
prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liahilities were recognised based on the present value
of the remaining lease payments, prepaid lease payments of deposits, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

«  Used a singte discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably simitar characteristics

. Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application

- Applied the short-term leases exemptions to lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term
of 12 months or less and do not contain & purchase option {short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the
underlying asset is of low value (fow-value assets)

. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

+  Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains opticns to extend or terminate the lease
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Detailed impact of IND AS 116 an Statement of Profit and Loss account, right of use assets & lease liabilities movement
has been disclosed in Note -46 to standalone financial statements.

(i} Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The amendment clarifies that an entity has to consider each unceriain tax treatment, assumptions used on tax treatments
by taxation authorities and method of determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates separately or together with one or more tax freatments. The approach that betfer predicts the
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resdlution of the uncertainty should be followed.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, but ceriain transition reliefs
are available.

Since the Company does not operate in a complex tax environment, applying the Interpretation does not have any
material effect on its standalone financial statements.

(iii) Amendments fo Ind AS 109: Prepaymént Features with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest an the principal amount
outstanding' {the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification.
The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of ihe event or
circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract.

These amendments does not have material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

{iv) Amendments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Cosfts

The amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings

Since the Company does not have any such harrowing cosis to be capitalized and therefore, there no effect on its
standalone financial staiements.

{v) Amendments fo Ind AS 12! Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or
events that generated distributabte profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax
sonsequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recagnized those past transactions or events, Such amendmentis are nhot applicable to the Company and hence does not
have any effect on its standalone financial statements.

{vi) Amendmenis fo Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 18 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailiment or setttement occurs during
a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the
annual reporting period, an entity is required to determine the current service cost for ihe remainder of the period after the
plan amendment, curtailment or setllement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit
liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under tha plan and the plan assets after that event. An entity is also required
to determine the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlernent using the
net defined benefit liability {asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event, and
the discount rate used to remeasure that nei defined benefit liability (asset). The amendments had no impact on the
financial statements of the Company as it did not have any plan amendments, curtailments, or settiements during the
year.Such amendments are not applicable to the Company and hence does not have any effect on its standalone
financial statements.

(vii) Amendments to Ind AS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 10@ to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture o which
the equily method is not applied but that, in substance, form pait of the net investment in the associate or joint venture
(long-term interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in Ind AS 109
applies to such long-term interests. The amendments also clarified that, in applying Ind AS 109, an entity does not take
account of any losses of the assaciate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as
adjustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying Ind AS 28 ‘Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures’. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements as the Company does hot
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have any associates and joint ventures.

{viii) Annual Improvements to Ind AS 2018

¢ Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains contral of a husiness that is a joint operation, it
applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring
previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the
acquirer remeasures its entire praviously held interest in the joint operation. An entity applies those
amendments io business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reperting period beginning on or after 1 April 2019, These amendments had no impact on the
financial statements of the Company as there is no transaction where joint control is obtained by the
Company.
o Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

An entity that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control
of the joint operation in which the aclivity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defined in Ind AS
103. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in that joint aperation are not remeasured.
An entity applies those amendments fo transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period keginning on or after 1 April 2019. These amendments had
no impact on the financial statemants of the Company as there is no transaction where a joint control is
obtained.

e Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past
fransactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an
entity recognises ihe income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, ather comprehensive
inceme or equity according to where it originally recognised those past transactions ar events. An entity
applies the amendments for annual reparting periods beginning an or after 1 April 2019. Since the
Company has not declared any dividends, these amendments, do not have any impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the daie of issuance of the
Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends 1o adopt these new and amended
standards if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendmeants to the definition of a business in Ind AS 403 help entities determine whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is a business or not. They clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing elements, add guidance to
help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of
outputs, and introduce an optional fair value conceniration test.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting pericd beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that
oceur on or after the beginning of that period. Since the amendments apply prospactively to transactions or other
events that ocour on or after the date of first application, the Company will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors align the definition of ‘malerial’ across the standards and clarify certain
aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ‘Information is material if omitting, misstating or
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obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial infermation about a
specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify that materiality wilt depend on the nature or magnitude of
infarmation, either individually or in combination with cther informaticn, in the context of the financiai statements,
A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1
April 2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company's financial statements, '

iii. Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of refiefs, which
apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hadging relationship is
affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the
hadged item or the hédging instrument. The amendments to Ind AS 107 pres'cribe the disclosures which entities are
required te make for hedging relationships to which the refiefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These
amendments are applicabie for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. These amendments are not
expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements.




Apee|ay Surrendra Park Hotets Limled
Notes to Standalene Financlal Statements as at 31 March 2022
(aft

iy

o

ameunts In INR Crares, unless otherwlse stated)

Buildings Furlitire Capit] werk-in-|
earticulars Freohold Lond Plant and Equipment Compulers ond Vehlcles Office Equipment Electrical Instatlatien Total progress
[Reter (2} and (b) below] Elxtures
Gross biack
Balance ag ot 1 Aprll 2020 110.04 S86.47 163,84 4.81 49,2 13.09 361 3933
Acditionsfadiustment during the year - 593 2.85 218 500 .20 .03 0,51
Disposalsicopltallsatianiadjustments durlng the vear - (161 {040} 10.08) - (2173 - L
Balances as at 31 March 2021 110.04 £80.79 166.08 4.92 S4.21 13.92 3.84 36.84
Additions ¢ adjustment durlng the peniod - 1.98 4.36 0.4% 4,47 1.23 0.10 040
Diszosalsicapitolisation/adjustments during the period - {0.29) 11.34) - (0.15) [0.60) > -
Balances as af 31 March 2022 110.04 592,46 189.17 5.33 5B.83 1378 .78 39.04
Accumulated Depreetatdon
Opening balance ag ot 1 April 2020 - 35,48 4798 221 14668 6.58 .98 11.03
Depreciation charge during the year - 8,82 12,08 0.71 ars 178 0.32 087
Dlsporalss adiustments durlng the vear - (1.531 (0.21} {0.0B) - (] = -
Balance as ot 31 Mareh 2021 - 42.87 59.35 2.84 18.41 8.24 1.30 1190
Depreciation charge during the perlod - 3ES 1261 0.85 .83 1.75 D.32 088
Dispesats! adiustments durlng the pericd - {0.013 {D.67) - (D.14) [D,56) - -
Balonces a8 3t 31 March 2023 - 5251 7180 3.49 2.10 543 1.62 J2.5%
bt Block :
Balances as at 31 March 2021 118.04 547.92 106.23 2.08 35.80 4238 234 27.94 837.24 2745
Bolances as at 31 Match 2022 110.04 5308.85 7.0 1.84 36.43 432 2.12 27.35 818,37 28.51

Assets glven under operating feasce

Gress Block of Buildings inciude cost of construction of INR 0.85 Crores (31st March 20212 INR 0.85 crores} in other area. It also includes certain portion of a Bullding ghven undor operating lease, the partieulars are given belaw:

Particulars AS o As on

31 Mareh 2022 3% March 2021
Gross Block X3 427
Accurmulated Depreeiation 0.48 0.40
Net Block 272 3.81

Raler nolo 45 for wdermatien of proparty plant equipment given Lisder eperating |ease

Assests not held In the name of company
Title deeds of the immovable propertics included In above agpregating to INR 18,87 crores (34 March 2021:

NR 19.97 crores) are not held in the nama of the company refer detall 2elowi-

Whether title deed hoider is a
Description of premoter, directer or relative# of | Reasan for net belng held In the name of the
5 T
Relevant line item in the Balance sheat sem: of property Gross carmying value tle decds held In the name of promoterfdirector o employee of company
promoter/director
Property, plant and oguipment Freehald Land 10.15 | Geminl Hotels & Holdings Limited | No Title dead of this land is held In the name of
GGeminl Hotels & Heldings Limitad
GHHL)&ndhra Hotels Private Limbed (AHPL}
B
Praperty, plant and equipment Freeheld Land 8.28 | Lake Plaza Hotels No nid sthers an nesaunt of amalpamation ang
Froperty. plant and equipment Frsehold Land 1.44 | Andhra Hotels Private Limitad e merger In sardler years. The name change in
wch tile daads |G i progess
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(G) Centractual ebllgation : refer nota 42 6‘. dlselosure of contractual cammitment for aculsition of property, piant and equipmant.
progress campnses of expanditure INR 28.51 erores (31 Marsh 2021 INR 27,45 croresjunter course of Instalfation and construction of varlous projects and renavation warks.

{d] Copltal wark In progress ; Capital warl

(&) Capltai work In progress {CWIP) Agelng #
As ot 31 March 2022

Less than 4 year; 12 yeats | 2-3 years More than Total
Parteulars 3 years
Projects in progress 248 5,14 263 1727 28.51
Prajects temporarlly suspended - - - - -
As at 21 March 2021
More than
‘ﬂuaoc_u_w Less than 1year] 1-2years | 23 years Jyears Toti
[Prajeets in profrens 5.03 447 2,68 1537 | 27.45
Projects terrpararily suspended N - - - | -
{1y Capital work In progress {CWIP) Completon #
As at31 Mareh 2022
To be completed in
Project Name Less than 1 year| 1-2years | 2-3ycars g%,.«.un“_.“:
Holel prejsct at Vizep 2.15
Hotel proiect at Pune 1338
Hotal praject at Chettinad Pafaca 0.34
Coatectianery Qullets 0.56 G.59
| Hotud project at Kelkata 10,42
Other _
0.53 | - 26.26
A% 3t 31 Mareh 2021
To be completed In
p
roject Name Lest than Tyecar] 12years | 23 years gwwwmwz
Hotel project at Vizag 1.81
Hetel project at Pune 13.3%
Hotel preject at Chettinad Palase 0.34
Reotacement of Chiliar plant [TPRO} ¢.18
Confectionery Outlots 135
Hatel praject at Kolkata 10.42
Cther
- 153 - 25,92

# Baced on the requirements of Schedula L

(g} Property plant and equipment pledged as securlty: refer note 22 & 27 for Information of property plant and egquipment pledged as

botrawing taken by the company.

(h) Mo berrowing cust hos been copitilized durlng the curtent periad and previous year.

2 secunity fof berrowing by Company. The title deade of immovable property included In propery, plant and equipment amounting ta Rs, 11,81 crores hac besn Ennmwn with banks ogainst

2o,
20,

oilek
i

«
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4. Other Intangible assefs

Particulars Ceomputer Sofm_ares Design Brani Goadwill Total
{Acquired)

Gross block

Balance as at 1 April 2020 5.58 0.87 30.84 2284 60.10
Additions { adjustments during the year 0.13 - - - Q.13
Disposals during the year 0.20 - - - .20
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5.71 0.87 30.84 22.81 .60.23
Additions / adjustments during the period (.35 - - - 0.35
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6.06 0.87 30.84 22.81 60.58
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2020 4.24 - 1.05 - 5.29
Amortisalion charge during the period 0.98 0.1C 1.50 - 2.58
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5,22 010 2.55 - 7.87
Amortisation charge during the peried 0.68 0.10 1.45 - 2,22
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5.90 0.20 4.00 - 10.09
Net bleck

Balance as at 31 March 2021 : 0.49 0.77 28.29 22.81 52,35
Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.16 .67 26.84 22.81 50.48
5A. Right of use asset .

Particulars ' Land Building Total

[Refer {a) below] [Refer {b} below]

Balance as of 1 April 2020 75,60 39.58 115.18
Adiditions during ihe period - 4.1C 410
Deletions during the period - {0.30) {0.30)
Amorlisation during the period (1.45) {2.92) 14.37}
Balance as at 31 March 2021 74,15 40.46 114.61
Additiens duiing the peried - 11.68 11.58
Deletions during the perod - .01} {0.01)
Amortisation during the period (0.89) (4.81) (6.70)
Batance as at 31 March 2022 73.26 47.22 120.48
Nat block

Balance as at 31 March 2021 74.15 4048 114.61
Balance as at 31 March 2022 73.26 47.22 120.48
(@) Land includes leasehold land .

() Building includes Guest houses, Restaurant premises, Glub and shop.
5B. Investment Properties
Particulars Investment Tetal

Properties *

Balance as of 1 April 2020 142.20 142.20
Dapreciatior: during the period {0.76) (0.76)
Balanco as at 31 March 2021 141.44 141.44
Depreciation during the period (0.76) {0.76)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 140.68 140.68
Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2021 141.44 144.44
Balance as at 31 March 2022 140.68 146.68

* Investment properties primarily consists of feasehold land taken for a conlinuous period of 89 years. In prior years, the Company had acquired certain parcel of lands aggregating to fNR 146.78 crores for
expanding its hotel business. Subsequently, ihe Company has beer: actively considering opporlunities fer development and sale of portions of each such land parcel. Pending a final decision on the exlent to
which each such land parce! may be used for purposes other than the Company’s hotel business, management has considered il appropriate to recognise deferred tox asset aggregating iNR 15,18 crores {31
tarch 2021: INR 15.10 crores) arising from difference between book values of those porfions of land parcels that, based on managements best estimate which is reassessed at each reporling date, are likely

1o be used for purposes other than the Cempany’s hotel business on aforesaid and thelr corresponding indexed cosls for tax purpeses,

Fair valualion nole for investment property-

"Eair value of the properties was determined By using lhe market comparable methed . This means that valualions performed by the valuer are based on aclive markel prices, significantly adjusted for
differerce n the nature, location or condition of the specific proparly. As at the date of valuation of March 31, 2022, he proparties' fair values are based on valuations performed by Més Champalall Properlies
Pyt Ltd, an accredited independent valuer who has relevanl valualion experience for similar office properiies in India for the last 53 years and is a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies

{Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.
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Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
3% Margh 2021

Investmentin subsldiaries
Unguoted equlty shares
in subsldlaries (equity shara of 1NR 1¢ each) {at cosl)

5,200 Equty Shares (31 larch 2021 - 5,200 aquity shares) of INR 10 sach fuly paid up in Apee]ay Chartsr Privals tiitad
10,000 Equty Shares (31 March 2021 - 10,000 equity sharas) of INR 10 sach furyy paid upin Agecjay Hotels & Rosiaurants Private Liniilad
0,000 Equty Shares [31 March 2021 - 10,000 cquity shares) of INR 10 each futlf pakl up in Apaeay Harth Wast Holels Privata Limted

Tofal

Fogregate velus of tguotad inve stments

Inveslments

[At faTr valoe through Prant & Loss {EVTRLY

10 Equety Shares {31 Waech 2020 - 10} of IHR 10 each hily pald up in Artstary Houes Private Limited

3,000 Equéty Shates (31 Karch 2021 - 8,000) of IR 10 each fuly paid up in Green nfra Wind Faems Limiie

12,000 Equty Stares {31 March 2021 - 12,000) of INR 10 cach ity pais up in Green Infia Wind Gersmtion Limited

Aggregate valus of unquated imestmarnts
* Below raundng off norms.

Loans {Hon Current)
(Unsecured, considerzd good Lrtass olhaniiza sated )
Leans to employees
Seourity Deposis
Conzdered Good
Credt impaved

Less: Secuity Deposits- credt impa'red

Other lioancial assels (Non Cugent)
Hargin monay with banks {refef nota 18)

Tax agsets (on Cument}
{Unszcured, consifered geod)
Advanca inzame tax (et of provison for b}

Other assets (Hon Current)
{Unszcured considered good, un'sss otherwiss stalad)
Capital advances

Comsdered Good

Credtimpayed

Lass: Capital Advance - credi impaled
Arfvancas recoverable in kind

Credit ipaired

Loss: Advance recsivabla - credit impaiced
Cthers

Dalerred Slafl Cost

Daposit vith stabdary autharitzs under protast

Balarce vith govemment awthorites

Prepaid pareas

Invantories
Raw Malerlajs (at cost)
Provigans, bsveragas (exchuding whes ond iquars) ard smekes

Fintshed Cood (at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Winzs and Rquers

Crockery, cutery, ghasware, Tnzn, efe.

Storos and spares parts

oot
0Qt
001
0.03
.03

0.03
0.03

Asat
31 March 2022

om
001
.02

002

Asat
31 Mareh 2022

213

092

10.05

[0.92 813

Asal
3% March 2022

308
3.09

Asat

31 Margh 2022

624
5,24

Asat

31 March 2022

222
034
(0,24 -
081
0.81 -
am
695
059
08t
10,69

Asat
31 March 2622

154

573

1.84
.69

ool
oo
D.04
061
2.0
g3
0.03
hsat
31 Margh 2021
0.04
001
0.02
002
Asat
31 March 2021
003
B2Z3
a5z
9.15
0.52] 823
£.26
Asat
3§ Mareh 2021
3m
302
Asat
31 Mageh 2021
343
3.43
Asal
31 March 2021
315
030
0,30) -
081
{0.81} -
00%
23
D&%
nis
11.25

Asat
31 March 2021




hpsefay Surrendra Park Hotsls Limited
Hotes to the Standalone Financlal Statements as al M Rarch 2022
{All amounts in IHR Crofes, unless othensise staled)

13 Traderecelvables

Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 MSarch 2021

{Unsecured)
Trads recehables 17.60 170
Total frade recelvables 1 17.80
Break up 15 a5 under:
Uneacured, Cansldared good 1760 1780
Trads mceivables -credit inpaired 1174 i2.35

29.34 30,26
Impairment allowance
Trade raceivables -wedt inpaired 11.74) (1235]
Tolal trade receivables 17,80 17.80
Trads receivablss ara non interes) bearing and gensraliy on terms of 60 to €0 days
Trags recehalies have been pledged as o szouity for borroving. refer nota p. 22 & 27 for dataTs.

Trade receivables Aelng Schedule as at 315t Warch 20228
Bulstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
7
Partiewlars Lessthan € Months | 6 months - 1 yeat 12 years 2.3 years "“’;::::" 3 Total

Undisputed 11ade Recevatlss — cansideied good a7 537 760 1.40 578 29.34
Oreepited Trade Recenables - whth have sgnficant increass n oedt sk - - - - - -
Undieputad Trade recefvabh ~ creda impaied B.60)| Baa) Eas) .42 15.79) {11.74)
Disgputed Trads vabl 1derad gaod - - - - -
Dispaied Trade receivables — vivch hava sarkcant neraase in cred fisk - - - - | -
Disputed Trade teceivables — ¢zedit impared - - - - - -
Tedal a7y 2568 485 9.28 {0.09] 12.60

Trade recelvables Aneing Schedute a3 al 3isiMarch 20214

Dulslanding 161 tollowing perlods fron: due date of payment
Particulars Less Ihan Nonths | 6 months — 1 year 1-2 years 23 years Tomt
Undieputad Trads Receiveblas — conskerad goad 878 1.55 9.09 238 B.45 0,25
Undizpizd Traga Recaivables — wiich Fawe signficant icaaca i credinisk -
Undpired Trads recer —credit impaied (301 8.44)] 1235)
Diepeded Trads secereblas - considered good -
Dizptited Trads recelvables — viich have shnfeanticeass in cedit risk -
Dicputed Trads recepvablos - creditimpay —
Total 878 1,65 5.18 2,38 001 17.90
# Pasad on the reqedtemants of Schadule 1D
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash and cash equivafents
Cashon hard"? 108 085
Balances with banks!
- On current accounts .85 591
6.74 .15
* Gach on hand nchuides faraign camency onhand.
# Includas carporate cred card
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 34 March 2021
Clher bank balances e
Deposts with matwity mora than 3 manths and less than 12 manths. 328 323
Lass margn monay dacesed (Refer Nula 8) (3.09) {3.02)
018 Q.21
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
INR
Loans {Currenty
{Uneacured, considered gead | unisss athariso stated)
Laan to 3 bedy corparate {inciuding loan to related party of INR 0.71 crores (31 Rarch 2021: INR 2.48 Crares)) 7ot 11.25
Lean te Employees 0405 o010
Security deposts 0.63 081
7,68 1216
Loars to body corparala eamizs Intzrest at rala of 10% p.a and iz rapayabl ond=mand
Asat Asat
31 Warch 2022 31 March 2621
Other financlal assets [Current)
{Unsecuted considered good, wness otharwise stated)
Intarest accrued on d2posts and bans
Considered good 450 288
Cyaditimpaired 133 133
Less: Alovates for creditimpaked racsivables 1.3, - 1.33) -
Oherracatvables © 285 4.36
7.38 Y
* Othar reahvables inchida cantrect assels ie, unbied revenus of INR 0.t4 crores (31s) March, 2021 1 INR 0.15 crores)
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 Marsh 2021
Other asscts (Corrent)
{Unzocused considated gaod, wnless othanwiss stated)
Fgvarce tetavarabla in kind
Considered good 2x 282
Creditimpaired 1.34 134
Lass: Alowance lor craditimpaired advaices {34 - 139 -
Advarea to Employees
Cansidered good 008 .08
Cradit impawed 0,85 085
Less: Allawanca for expected eredil advances. {C.85y - (0.85) .
Prepald expensss 482 478
Aocuad duly exemption banskt * 239 275
Dafared staff cost o 2.0
Balances vith statitory autheritas **
Considered good 157 0.75
Considared doublful ooa Q.08
Less : Allawanca for cradi Impaired advancas 0.5 - {0.08) -
Artvance to supplier - -
21.27 1147

* Ageruad duty exemption banafit consst of amuunts Recavable wwards Sarved From India Schama {SFIS} on accaurnt of free forelgn sxchangs earmed duing tha paried,

« Incudes amaunts raatsable from fakvant avthorites in respect of G357 and vahie added tax These are gereraly realisad vikin ons year af regularly e to offsot the

assels.

GST Fabity and valus added tax [abTy of the Company, Accardingly. thase balanceshave bzenclassfad as curent




Ferclay Surrendra Park Holels Limited
Holes to the Stancalone Fizanclal Slatements as at 31 March 2022
(AH amounts In INR Crores, unless othervise stated)

19 Equity share gaplial

Aulhorsed equity share capital:
As at 31 March 2021 {equily shara of INR 1 each)
As at 31 March 2022 (equity share of INR 1 each)

issued, subscribed and pald-up
Eqully shares of IR 4 each, Issued subseribed and fully pald up

As at 31 March 2021 {aguity share of 4R 1 each)
As at 31 March 2022 {equity share of INR 1 each)

[¢] Terms and righls attached 1o eqully shares

Tre Cotnpany has arty ans class of £quty shares iafarrad to a5 equty shares having a par vahsz of INR 1 par share. Each Slanha)
Arnusat General Kaating, oxceptin cass of mtorim gividand. in the ovant of igiidaton, tha equly shareholiars are efgtis to recelve the remaining as

Humiber of Shares
35,00,00,000
35,00,00,000

17.46,61,760
17,48,64,760

Amount
35,00
25.00

17.47
1747

or is eniited to ana otz par shate 2. Tha diidend propased by the Board of Drectars is subjettto tha approvat of shateholders in the ensung
sals of tha Canpany aflzr disabwtion of aV preferentsl amounts, if any. the distilatsn wi bs i praportion o rumbsr of equity

chares hakd by tha shareholders.
m Detalls of shares hefd by shareholders holding mote than § % of the aggregale shares In the Company,
Asal Asat
31 [Sarch 2022 3% March 2021
: “teumber of Shatas N Humiber of Shares o
Particulars held Y held %
Gizat Eastom Stores Privata Limied" 5,25,00,000 B0EH 5.25,00,000 3005
 epaajay Private Limited 4.44.97.500 19759 3.44.87.500 19.76%
Apzefay Surrendia Trost 3,00,02,400 17.18% 3,00,02.A60 17,183
ppszlay Engnecing Frvala Eimitad 1,45,00.000 8,30 1,45.00.000 B.30%
hpeajay Agendies Privats Umited 1,45,00,000 8.320% 1,45,00,000 6.30%)
pzgjay Howsa Frivata Limited 1.4500.000 830% 1,45,00,000 8,307
RECP IV Park Holel nvestors Limaed 25,656,340 5.53% £8.65,340 5.53%)
“Tha name of Fhurys Confectanary Privalz tmiad has been changed la Great Easlem Stores Prvats Umited
(T Shares held by an InvesBng party In respect of which the Company Is an assoclats
Outaf equty shares is=uzd by thz company, sharss he'd by he investing party & rospect of which i Gompany Is an assodiats are as balaur
Asal Asat
31 March 2032 24 March 2021
Great Easten Slores Privale Linited®
572,500,000 squity shares al INR 1 each (31 March 2031: 52,500,000 equiy shares at INR 1 sach) 535 523
{iv} Additlonal disslasura related to premoter shareholding as follows#:
%
5. Ho. Promoter's name® Ho, of shares % of total shares ;'E:'r'“”g” durtng the
1| Great Eastam Stores Frivata limited * 5.25.00.000 30.06%| he Changs
2{KARAH PAUL 0 U.DO%% Ho Changa
3| TRUSTEE APEEJAY SURRERDRA TRUST 3,00.02400 17.183% No Cmngs
# Basad on tha requirements of Schaduly I
* The mema of Elurys Confectenary Private Fmited has baen changad to Great Eastemn Storas Pitvate Limitad
Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2022 31 Margh 2021
20 Qther equity
Reserves and Surpius
Capitsl Redamptan Razarva 141 141
Securities Premim 18384 18381
Gepzrat Resene 7074 7874
Relainzd Eamvngs 22554 25505
489.50, 519.05
iy Capltai redemplion resenys
Balance at the baginning of tha jear 141 141
Balarze at the end of tha yzar 1.4 1.41
@ Securities premlum
Balance at the beginning of tha yaar 183.81 18384
Balaree at the end of tha year 183.81 18381
(7E} General reserve
Ba'anca al tha beginning of tha year 7a74 7874
Balanca at the end of lha year 78.14 7a.74
{iv) Retalned earpings
Surplus Tn tho Statement of Profitand Loss
Batance at lhe bagraing of ths year 255.09 32854
Total camprahansive income recognsed for th year (29.55) 3.85)
Balance as attha end ol ha yaar 225.54 255.09
Tetal 43950 519.04
Hafure and purpose of reserves
Capliat iederaption reserve
Capital redempbon reserva represents amaunt anisen pursitnt 1o Schame of Amalzamation erd on account of buy back of shares.
Securities premlum
Securites pranium represents promium eeceived onissua af shares, The reserve Y ba utzad in accordance with tha provisons of Compan'es Act, 2012
General reserve
General resana repeesents & free resevo pol held for any spedific purpess.
Relained eamings
Relainsd eatrings are the profits Bt the Company tas eamed b1 dale, less any transfer o ganeral resenva apprapriation towards daidends or other 4 paid 1> ders, as bt
Asal As at
31 idarch 2022 31 Hlarch 2021
21 Lease Liabififfes (Hon Cument)
Leaso Liabites (efar nots 45) 2069 1335
20.69 13,36




Apesay Surrendra Park Hofels Limited
Notes to the Slandalone Financlal Statements as at 31 March 2022
{Al amounts In INR Crores, unless olhensdse stated}

hsat Asat
31 Larch 2022 31 Harch 2021

22 lon Gument Berrowings

Secursd larm kaans
From Banks

Rupea loans

485,60
468.68,

Rafer Hote-27 for amaournt discfosed undar other Eabdites as "Current matutitzs of long-term batravings
Repayment terms and secthity disclosure for sulstanding tong ferm borrowdng as an 31 March 2022
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Rupes Loan ham a Bank amountng to IR 8553 Croras (31 March 2021: INR 104 53 Croras) is sxcured by vray of Equétsble Morlgega by dapasi of e dzed of Immoyable sreporty of the Company situated at Hydarsbad as Frstchame and alo to bs sacorsd by vay of
hypothacaton by way of fiel charga on iz enfite fiovabla firsd assets siuatad at H b present and futura, reaking par passa ik othar banks for thelr bans, Such ban has betew tepayment schad/s:

~frst nstatment of INR 261 Crares stading fram September 30, 2022, toloved by

- 21 equal quarterty instatmenis of INR 3.25 Crares,

-3 equal quarterly inskaTments of INR 3.2 Grores,

- | equal quarterdy instalments of INR 3.26 Craras and

1 Tnstalmiants of iNR 4.64 Grores on 30 Decarber 2028

Rupse Laan from a Bank amotmting to #R 3370 Grores (31 March 2021 INR 45.00 Crores) scovred by way of Equitabls Marigage by dzpasit of ita datd of Immevabla properiy of tis Campany siuatad at Hyderabad as st charys and alse to be sscured by way of
hypatiecation by vy of first ehrarg? on the snére movatls fued assets sihated al Hydarabad, belh prosent and fuhse, tanking pari psssu vith ather banks ot thelr Bans. Such kaan fas balow repagmert schadu's -

- 26 aqual quartedy irstalimens o R 1.32 crores and

-4 aqual quartesly instaments of INR 1.33 crores

Rupze Losn om a Bank amoctag to iR 46,68 Crares (31 Kiarch 202t: INR 61 35 Croras) s secured by way of morgags by depoct of tha deed of mmovable progerty of i Company sivated at Kolkata a2 firsl charga ranking pari passu véh other ks for the'r ioarns.
Suchloan kas belew repayment schaduis:

- 3 quartsdy i £ R 3.67 crores, startng from 19 May, 2022, fofiwed by

- & quanterly inztalmenis of INR 3.93 Crores and

-1 instalment of IKR 4.20 Crerss an 13 Feb, 2025,

Rupoa Loan from a Bank amaunting to INR 83.96 Creres (31 Karch 2021 MR 70.27 Crores) is secized by vay of merigage by dzpositol Bt dosd of immevabla prapaity of tha Company sitvated st Kelkata as fist charga ranking pari passu vith other banks for theit leans. Such
loan has bels repayment sthedia:

— 8 queartedy instaTments of INR 3.16 Crofes rapaymenl starbng fiam 20 June, 2002, fotlowed by

-8 quartery staTment of INR 4 20 Croras and

+ { quactedy instaTment of INR 5.24 Grares

Rugce Loan from 2 Bank amounting 1z INR 77.27 Crares (31 Fearch 20217 fMR 7B.05 Crores} is sacwed by way of Kortgage by depositof e deed of immavably property of B Company situsted at Kolkata as first chaega ranking pari passLrwith athar banks or tatr oans,
Suchlosn has below repayment schadulal

_ 08 quartarly instalments ot IR 0.20 Crores,rapaymant startng 31 May, 2022 follavsed By

- 4 quarledy instafments. of tHER 0.98 Crares,

- 4 quarterly instatments of INR 2.35 Crares,

- @ quantary instalments of INR 6.49 Cioresand

- 3 quartedy lnstaWnent of INR 6.23 Creres

Furelgn Curmanay Loan frem a Bank amotnting fo INR HIL Crares (31 March 2021 -INR 24 85 Crores) is sacured by hypotlecation by way of fiat charga for the' loan op al the plant & machinary atached fo tha sarth or parmansntly fastonad to anglhing attached t ths sarls,
ot prasant and o, of the Company's unil stualed at Bangatars and by way of equils morgaga for thelr kaan by deposit of £l deeds of mmovabla praparty of tha Holdng eiuatad af Bangatore, fantiog pari passis with othar banks for thele foans. Such loan i ta bo rapaid
11 b half-yasty Instelments of USD 0,17 eroras sach stattng from Acgst 28, 2021

Rupss Loan from a Bark aniawntng to INR 54.00 Grores {31 Meich 2021 INR B0 00 Crares) scoured by way of Pquitable bortgags by deposi aftits desd of Immovatia prapcrty of hs Company stusted at Kotkata and YVizag »s Frst chargs and slso lo be socured by vy of
hypotecation by viay af frst chargs o o enfra movabls fxed ass2ts sihakd at Kaat and Vizag, bath present and Rulire, ranking pari passis vith other benks for \hetr boans. Such ban bas below rapaymant schadu'a:

~ i quatery instaltments of INR 225 Crores, repayment statting from 19 uns, 2022 lolowsd by

- 4 quartery instafments of INR 275 Crores,

- 4 quanerly insta’ments of INR 3.50 Grores, and

- A quarterly instaments of (MR 5.00 Croras.

Rupes Losn from a Bank amousiing to 4R 21 21 Crares (31 March 2021: INR 32.63 Croies) sanured by way of Equitablz Morigaga by depasitof ita deed of immavabia proparty of s Company situated at Nav Murnbai as Frst chiarge and atss to be seoured by way of
hppolhecation by way of st chargs on e entre movabla fird assats sfuatad 3t Newi Mumbaf, both pracent and futs, ranidng pad passu with etiar banks for ek faans. Stchioan s bero rapayment schedua

_ 8 quarlerly instafmants of INR 286 Croros, repayment starkng from Junz 13, 2032 fotoved by

-1 quadery instaliments of INR 4,07 Crores.

Rupeo Loan e a Bank amounting to 1R 45.08 Crores (31 March 20212 48.06 ) seaured by,
1) Second charge over The Park, Kolkata

2) Second charge ovar The Park, Vizag

3) Second pari passu chargs over Tha Park, Bengatumy

4) Sacond pari passu charge ovar current assats of the company.

Suchloan is repayabl in 45 equal monthly instaTments of Rs 1,00 Cromss stalng from 30 Apdl 2022,
Rupee Loan from a Benk ameunting to MR 48,08 Crores (31 March 202{: Hi)eacwed byt

1) Second chargs over Tha Park, Kalkats

2) Second chatga ovor Ths Park, Vizag

3) Second pari passu charge over Ths Park, Bangaluu

4) Secord pari passu charge over current assats of tha company.

Suchloan Is repayabia in 48 equal monthiy inststmants of Rs 1.00 Croras startng from 30th September 2022

Rupse Loan fiom a Bank amounting o INR 14,86 Crores {3t barch 2021 15,41 ) secured by

1) Primary Securty un 2€ assats created autof the GECL Lean acqurod ot of the faciity amounts over which frst charge fs ercatad
) Setord par passu charga over The Park, Bangalur

3) Sacond pari passa charge over Tha Park, Hydembad

4) Second tharge onall Primary sacisitias avatable for the existing faciites.

Suchleanis repayab’ In 48 manthly instatmants rang’ng frem Rs. .23 Crores -0.38 Crares starting fram 2Zh Apnl 2022,

Rupee Lear from a Bank amountng to INR 1541 Crares {31 March 2021: Mi) sacired byt

1 JFiimary Securty on a1 assets created out of the GECE Loan acquired ovl of tha faciTty amounts aver wiieh fist charga Is ereated
2 Second par passu chargs ovat Tra Park, Bengalwy

3} Second pari passu charge over The Park, Hyderabad

4} Secord chama an a1 Primary securites avatablo for th exisng facitzs.

Sueh Joan Is repayab’ in 48 marthl instatments rang'ng hom Rs. 0.20 Grares - 0.38 Grores starting from 30t July 2023.

Rupze Loar from a Bank smownting to 1R 48.00 Croras (3t March 20212 NI) securad by:

1.3Primary Secuiity on af assats created out of the GECL Loan eeaifrad ot of the facilty amounts over which first charge is eraatad
2} Sacord pari passu elarga over The Park, Bengalsu

3y Second pati passu chame over Tha Park, Hyderabad

4) Sacond crarge on all Primary sacieitas avatabls for ha existing facTties

Such kean e repayable [n 48 manthly instalmarts Fanging trom Rs. 0.23 Crores - 0,38 Qrores starting fram O1st July 2022,

Rupee Loan fron a Bankamaunig to INR 3.05 Crores (3% March 2021, 2.73 Grores ) 100% trorit guarantes by Matonal Credil Guarantse Trust Company Limited.
Such foan fs rapayabs in 48 squal monthy installments startng from 6th Aprl 2022,

Vahicin loars aggregating INR 1.30 Crores {31 blarch 2021: INR .58 Crores) fam banks are secwed by vay of hypslhacaton of veildes fancod. Repayable in monthly instalments (anging batueen 35 and 80 instaliments.

{ntarest rates on Rupes Loans are vanying i tho ranga 6f7,50% to 10:85 % p.a. intho current poriad. Interest rates on Forelgn Guirency loans {USD) era varying in the rangs ot 2 B1% to 4.10% margin on & manth LIBCR diming ths cument period.
The amglints statzd infootnates i) lo (xv) abova 2re inclushis of any ameunts disclsed undar Currert Mabwites of Long Tetm Barrouings, if any.

During Iho yaar ended March 31, 2022, o procendings vers itisted against the Gotpany for halding any benami property inder the Benami Transactons (Fratibifen) Act, 1685 (45 of 1238} and the ndes mado thareundsr

Tha Gompany ks not declared vihd dofaufer by any bank or financial Institutan or ather lehdar dising the year endad March 81, 2022
During ths yaar ended March 31, 2022, tha company has regufarty submitted wiitten informaton with the fenders wnder Iha tamms of respactiva baroving agreemant

{Hote: Borravings ara nat of EIR adjustment)

:
i
;
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Ap2afsy Surrendra Park Holets Limited
Rotes to the Standalone Financiat Statements as at $1 Marsh 2022
{All ameunts fn INR Crores, unless olhervdse stated)

23 Oiker non cumrent financlal fabilites
Securily depost recaivad

2
4

Provisions {tor Currenl)

Provision far Gratuity (refer nole 43)

2

-4

Lease Liabllities - Curent
Leaca Lhabitas {rafzr nota 45)

e
L

Cureeit Borrowdngs

From banks
Warking cagitat boans's (Serured)
Warking eapital Loara'# {Unsecured)
Curtent maturitss of 2ng-term dabl

* Working capiialloans comprisas of

Asat Asat
3 March 2022 31 Iarch 2021
INR HR
— T 003
- 2.03
Asal Asat
i March 2022 31 Karch 2021
INR iNR
703 732
.03 7.2
Asat Rsat
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
408 AT
4.08 241
Asat Agat
31 March 2922 35 March 2021
R INR
4061 31,42
18,70 13,60
2428 7250
144,60 123.72

(a} Amount of INR 40,51 cores a al 8% March 2072 which is sscoeed by frsteharge by visy f Kypothscaton of inwaniadies, book ebts and othar cunent assats. both presant and o, of the Company ranking part passi whate appicatia, with Uz ether lenders for thalr boans
Sovd macurad by segerd chargs on Immorabla praperty stoatedat Bangora both presant and fuure, of tha Campany ranking pari passa vith the alher landers for iz aars

b} Unsecwnd banamatntng 1o RIR 19.70 crores as 2l 31 Marmh 2022
Intarest ralss an Yorking Cepital keans ara vanyhg in ths range of 9% la 11% p.a.

a Such working capial foans ars tepayablz wihn twehe nrnhs fom availag of raspectia loans in diferent respectiva instalments of ats rapayatla on demand.

Asat Asat
At March 2022 31 March 2021
INR HR
28 Trade Payakles
Duas to micro enterplizas and small enterprisas .76 213
Duas to othar than micro enterprises and =mal enterprises 3572 422
{incifing duss Lo related partes 3t March 2022, N7, 31 March 2021 KY)
3748 4404
) Trade payabls foxsept ISME) aie on-nlerest beating and are nommaly settied witin 60-120 days. o =
@) Trads payable lehide doa to refaled partas,
Trade payables Agelng Schodule as at 31 March 2622
Parliculars Ouistanding for Toflowing perods from due date of payiment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-1 years Hore than 3 years
Total oustand ng duas of micro enterprizas and small entansrisas 1.40 0.28 0.04 012 183
Toml olisEndng duss of crédiars other than misro entarprises and smal entamrtsas 21.82 757 275 am 3565
: ROrprses - - - - -
all ererprises - - - - -
23.32 8356 279 2113 748
Teade payahles Agefng Schedule 31 March 2021 §
Patllcutars Sutstanding fer folfoving petlods from due date of payment Tetal
Less than 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years Hore (han 3 years
Yotal outstanding duzs of micro entemdsss and small et rprists 173 029 002 008 213
Telal sutstand'ng duss of eredtors other Han ficre enterprises and smal erteprisas 28.10 845 1.81 285 2.1
Dizpidad duzs of miefo entarpdsss and small entermrises - - - - -
Disputad duzs of creditors other han mkso enterprisss and small entarpises - - - - -
Tolal 28.| 94 1.83 2.83 Ad34
# Based on tha requirments of Schadus I
Asat
' 21 Mareh 2023 A3 March 2021
29 Other financlal llabitites (surrent)
Interesl aecruad but nal dus on bomowings 055 033
ook overdraft 028 023
Capital fabiTtias 524 343
Empioyss bonafis payabla 1428 1367
Financat guarantes abfgatan - oot
Purchase Congidetation Payable az27 o7
Sacurity deposdls recelved 033 028
! 2142 18.80
Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
30 Provisions [Cumenl}
Provigon for gratuty 462 410
Provizlon for campensated absentas 38 465
861 875
Asat Asat
31 larch 2022 31 March 2021
M Other Habllilies {Currenl}
Slatutory duss 835 412
Contract Fatilas * 3sa 245
Deferred Rovanus 1.87 184
11.81 8,38

* Contratt FabTibas are advancos recatved from etrstomars and sre nan-intarest bearing
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Apeelay Surrendra Fark Hotels Limited
Notes to Standzlone Financial Statements as at 31 March 2022
{All amounts in INR Croras, unless otherwise stated)

Asat - Asal
25 Deferred tax labllities (net) - 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Component of Deferred tax liabllitles (net) {refer note A fzlow)
Deferred tax liabilities
Arising on account of temporary differences in :
Accelerated deprecialion for tax purpesas 101.49 09.11
Right of Uss Assets 5.61 3.65
Gross deferred tax liabilities 107,10 112,76
Deferred tax assets
Arising on account of lemporary differences in :
Lease Liabilities 8.44 4.02
Unabserbed depreciation and brought forward business losses 46.61 40.78
Allowed only on payment basis 8.55 9.30
MAT credit entillement {refer {7) below) 2649 25.49
Gross deferred tax assets 87.09 79.59
Net deferred tax labifities (including MAT credil entitlement) 20.01 33,17
{b) Reconcillatlon of deferved tax liabilities:
Opening balance as of Apiil 1 33.17 43,67
Tay income during the period recognised in Statement of Profi and Loss (13.27) {10.48)
Tax expensed{incoms) during the period recognised in Oinher Comprehensive Income 0.1 (0.02)
MAT credit entilemant L - - -
Closing Balance as at end of the pexiod 20.01 33,17

(i) The assel of INR 25.49 crores (31 March 2021 : INR 26.49 crores) recognizad by lhe Company as "MAT credit enfilement” represents the portion of MAT fiability, which can be recovered and set off
in subsequent years based on provisions of Seclion 115JAA of the Income tax Acl, 1981, The managemenl based on the present frend of profitabilily and also the future profitability projections, is of the
view that there would be sufficient taxable income in foreseeabls future, which will enable the Company to ulilize MAT credil assels.

{il) Deferred tax asset is recognized on unzbserbed deprecialion to the extent itis probable that fulure taxable profits will be available against which the deduclible temporary differences and unatsorbed
depreciation can be tilised. The Comparny has tax losses of INR 178,69 crores (31 Mareh 2021 : INR 156.86 crores} in the form of unabsorbed depraciation thal are available for offsetling for unlimited
period against fulure laxable profits, Company believes there is reasonable cerlainty that defermed tax asset will be recovered.

{c} Movement In deferred tax liabilities, net
Movement In deferred tax Habilities for current year ended 31 March 2022:

Partlculars Balance as S|ate?::l{1}?2fiz::)f[:: Recognlzedoér; Balance as
at 31 March 2021 at 31 March 2022
and Loss
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated deprecialion for tax puposes 10911 7.62 - 101.49
Right of Use Assels 3.85 (1.86} - 561
112.78 6.66 - 10710
Deferred tax assets
Unabserbed depreciation and brought forward business losses 40.78 {5.83) - 46,61
Lease Liabilities 4,02 {2.42) - 6.44
Alowed only on payment basis/ olhers 9.30 0.64 041 8.56
MAT credit entitlement 25848 - - 26.49
79.59 (7.61} 0.11 87.09
Net deferred tax liabilities 33.17 13.28 {0.11} 20.1
mMovement in deferred tax llabilities for previous year ended 31 March 2021:
Particulars Balance as Recognized in Recognized in Balance as
at 31 March, Statement of Profit ocl at 31 March,
2020 and Loss 2021
Deferred tax liabitities
Accelerated depraciation for tax purposes 96,51 {12.80) - 109.11
Right of Use Assets 3.07 {0.58) - 3.65
Olhers - - - -
99,58 (13.18} - 112.76
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation and brought fanward business losses 17.5% (23.27) - 40,78
Lease Liabilities 324 {0.78) 4.02
Allowed only on payment basls 967 .39 {0.02) 8.30
MAT credit entifement 2549 - - 25,48
55.91 {23.68) {0.02) 79.59
43.67 1047 0.02 33,17
Year ended For Year ended 31
31 March 2022 March 2021
[i) Income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit or Loss coemprises
Adjustment of fax refaling to eariier periods - -
Defersed tax {credityf charge {13.27) {10.48)
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss {13.27) {10,49}
{ii) Bicome tax credit reported in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income comprises
Deferred tax credit on remeasuremant losses on defined bensfit abligalions 0.11 {0.02)
Income tax credit reported in Statement of Other Comprehensive income 0.1 {0.02)
{11 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplled by statutory income tax rate for the period indicated are as follows
Year ended Far Year ended 31
31 March 2022 March 2021
Profit/(Loss) before tax (43.15) (85.47)
Cther Comprehensive Income 0.44 1.12
Total {42.71) {84.35)
Statutory income tex rate of 26 % { 31 March 2020: 26%) * (11.10} {21.93)
Tax effect of amounts which are net deductible (kaxable} in calculating
Adjusiment of tax relaling to eartier periods - -
Daferred tax liabilitie oz goodwilt - 593
Tax impact on indexalion of investment property Ml (0.08) 1.45
Trug-up adjustmentsiothers R i (2.01) 405
[13.27) {10.49)

*The Company continuas lo pay incoma lax under older tax regime and has nol opted fer lower tax rate pursuanl to Taxalion Law {Amendmenl) Ordinance, 2018 considering lhe accumutated MAT
credit, unabsorbad deprecialion allowanca and clher benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961,



Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
32 Revenue from Gontracts with customers
Room: revenue 12038 83.02
Sale of food and baverage 7233 47,42
Sale of wine and liquor 37.36 3046
Olner ancillary and allied service income 7.68 5.65
237.75 166.58
Other operating revenue
Management fees 5.29 274
Membership and subscripiion fees 0.41 047
5.7¢ 3.21
Total revenue from contracts with customers 243,48 168.75
324 Timing of revenue recognition
Goods/service {ransferred at a point of time 123.08 86.74
Senvice transferred over lime 120.38 83.02
243.45 169,76
As at As at
35 March 2022 31 March 2021
322 Centract balances
Trade receivables from contracts under under Ind AS 115 17.60 17.90
Gontrael assets ( refer note 17) - 0.15
Conlract liabilities (refer nole 31) 3.5% 2.46
Trade receivables are non-inlerest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 to 90 days.
Contract liabilities include advances from cuslomers,
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Maovement of contract liabilities
Arnounts included in contract fiabililies at the beginning of the peried 2.46 3.26
Amount received during the padod 28.59 18.12
Performance obligation satisfied in cuent peried from opening balance (2.46) (2.81)
Performance abligation salisfied in current pariod from amount receivad in current period {25.00) {(18.11)
Amounts inciuded in contract liabilities at the end of the period ended 31 March 2022 3.59 2.6

32.3  Perfenimance obligation
The performance obligation is satisfied and payment is due upon receipt of the servica received by the customer. Transaction price allocated to performance obligation not satisfied or parlially
salisfied is INR 3.58 creres {31 March 2021; INR 2.46 crores) . The same is expected lo recognised wilhin next 12 menths.

Year ended Year ended
34 March 2022 31 March 2021
33 Other income

Interest on advances, deposits and 1ax refunds 1.89 3.00
Commission* - G.06
Rental income 4.06 313
Net gain on foreign currency iranslation® - 1.07
Liabiliies no longer required written back 2.68 242
Provision for doubtful debls no longer required written back - 0.09
Insurance claim 1.58 -
Miscellaneous income 1.15 213

11.18 11,88

*Below rounding off noms




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March 2022
{All amounts in INR Grores, unless otherwise staled)

34

35

36

37

38

Consumpticn of provisions, beverages, winefliquor and smokes
{a) Provisicns, beverages (excluding wine and liquor) and smokes
invenlory at the beginring as on 1 April 2021
Add: Purchases during the period

Less: Inveniory at the end of 31 March 2022

B} Wine and liquor
Inventory al the beginning as on 1 April 2021
Adg: Purchases during the period

Less: Inventory at the end of 31 March 2022

Total Consumpticn (a+b)

Employees benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and olher funds
Graiuity

Staff welfare expanses

Finance costs

interest expenses on
Borrowings from banks
L egse liabilities
Others

Depreciation and amertisation expense

Depreciation on properly, pfant and eguipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation on investment properiies (refer note 58)
Amertisalion of Right to use assets {refer note 5A)
Ameortisation of intangible assets (refer nole 4)

Other expenses
Pawer and fuel
Rent
Rates and taxes
Corporate sociat responstbilily expense
insurance
Apartment expenses*
Quisourced coniraciual expenses
Guest supplies
Replacement of cuilery, crockery, glassware elc.
Adverlisement and sales promolion
Commission
Repair and maintenance
Repairs to buildings
Repairs to machinery
Repalrs to others
Printing and stationery
Postage, telephone and felex
Legat and professional Charges **
Securily charges
Traveling and conveyance
Loss on disposal / safe of tangible assels
Bad debls / advance wiritten off
Provision for deubtful debts and advances
Miscellaneous expenses
Payments to auditors [refer note 38 {i) below]

Year ended
31 March 2022

1.08
2528
26,35

1.42
24,92

5.81
9.323
15.14
5.73
9,41
34.34

Year ended

31 March 2022

54.67
361
1.36
3.08

62.72

Year ended
3§ March 2022

57.21
2.05
0.07

56.33

Year ended

__ 31March2022

2062
0.76
5.71
2,22

38.31

Year ended
31 March 2022

22.58
2.14
1051
0.10
2.49
413
8.05
2.94
0.99
4.47
1295

387
485
3.46
0.82
1.49
7.30
1.67
1,50
0.82
0.10
0.19
5.1
0.76
1903.08

Year ended
31 March 2021

1.56
16.85

18.41
1.06

17,34

817
8.15

14.92

9.41

26.45

Year ended
31 March 2021

45,88
4.34
188
1.52

53.62

Year ended
3% March 2021

54.48
1.34
0.31

56,14

Year ended
31 March 2021

28.44
076
4.37
2.59

36.16

Year ended
31 March 2021

17.38
1.67
11.14
o407
237
2.83
4.38
1.94
0.24
3.41
7.06

1.67
3.66
249
0.74
1.34
6.59

0.98
0,25
0.70
249
4.36
0.45

79.78

* Apartiment expenses includes consumplion of stores supplies {linen, carpet & upholstery, room decoration malerial, etc} made io the roors on account of service and other related costs.

* Inciudes management service faes Sirategic Advisory and Consuilancy Fees
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March 2022
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38 i)

39

(a)

(b}
{c}

40
{a)

{b}

(e}
(d)
]

Details of payment o auditors Year ended Year ended
31 Maich 2022 31 March 2021

Paymant to auditors

As auditors
- Audit fee for standalone and consolidated financial statements 0,32 o
- Consolidated financial statements 0.03 .03
- Limited Review of Standalone Financial Statemenls -

In other capacities

- Other Services 0.25 2.53

- Out of pocket expenses 0.04 0.04

- GST 0.12 0.07

0.76 2,98

Less: IPQ Expenses lransferred lo Exceptional items - 253

Net Balance 0.7% 0.45
Year ended Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
INR INR

Computation of Earnings per Equity Share
() Number of Equily Shares at the begianing of the period # 17,46,61,760 . 17.46,61,760
(#) Number of Equity Shares al the end of the period # 17,46,61,760 17,46,61,760
(ili) Weighted average number of Equily Shares outslanding during the period # 17,46,61,760 17,46,61,760
{iv) Face Value of each Equity Share INR # 1 1
(i} Loss after Taxation (including extraordinary ilem) .
Loss for the year {29.88) (74.98}
Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share [(b)Xa)(ii}] - INR # {1.71) (4.29)

# In terms of Indian Accounting Standarg 33 Earnings per Share, if the number of ordinary shares ouislanding increases as a rasull of share spiit, the calculalion of basic and diiuted eamings per
share for all periods presented shall be adjusted retrospeclively. The calculation of basic and diluted EPS has been considered considering the impact of share split as staled above

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Information relating te Micro and Smali and Medium Enterprises {(MSMEs)

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any suppller at the end of each reporting period;
Principal 184 2.01
interest 2.05 012

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act, - -
Principat - -
Interest - -

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - -

the ameunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each reporting period; and - -

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable evan in the succeading periods, unlil such date when the interest -
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Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statementds as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

41

As at ‘As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contingent Liabilities (net of provision})

(a)

(e}

()

(@iiy

(e}

(g}

Claims against the Company net acknovdedged as debt {refer '¢' below} - -
(Disputed Tax and Duty for which the Company has preferred appeals before appropriate aulhorities)

Demand for Land Tax 0.49 037
Demand for Entertainment Tax 081 0.81
Demand for Service Tax 439 439
Qutslanding Labour Dispules

Demand for Properly Tax {refer 'd ' below also) 149.83 131.89

Guaranlees (refer 'c' below)

Bank Guarantees Giver: to Customs and Other Aulherilies 0.48 .44
Corporaie Guarantee given by the Gompany o substdiary towards vehicle loan .50 0,50
In respect of the centingent Eabililies mentioned in Note (a) above, pending resclution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash
outflows, if any. In respect of ratlers menltioned in Note {b) above, the cash outflows, if any, could generally occur during the validity period of the respective guarantees. The Company
does nol expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

During eatlier yaars, Gompany had acquired, a parcel of land from the Kolkala Municipal Gorporation (KMC) through a bidding precess. the inilial proposed annual valuation for
determination of properly lax was reduced by the relevant Hearing Cfficer.of KMG based on representation made by the Company. Thareafler, the Municipal Commissioner {MC) of KMC
had cancelled such fower annual valualion and reinstated the inilially proposed annual valuation which was determined based on bid price paid by the Company. The Company had
challenged the said order of ihe MG before the Hon'ble Higl: Ceurt at Caleulta. The Hon'ble High Geurt had vide order dated 13th Oclober, 2015 set agide the decision of the MC on grounds
that relevant procedures as preseribed under the Kolkata Municipat Corporation Act, 1980 have not been followed for such higher valuation. Notwithstanding the said order, the KMC had
conlinued fo raise property tax demands based on such higher valuation. Aggrieved by such demand, the Company had filed a petilion before the same High Court under the provisions of
Article 226 of the Constitution of India again challenging the unilateral order passed by ihe MG en various grounds including annua! vatuation of comparable land parcels in the immediate
vicinily that are much fower than ihe valuation as per the order of the MC. The Hon'ble High Court at Calcutta had found a strong prima facie case to pass an inlerim order to stay the
aforesaid order of the MC il fusther orders and had directed the Company to coniinue to pay property tax based on the order of ihe Hearing Officer, as aforesaid which vill be adjusled
against new bills, if any. The Company has been complying with the said order and charging off property lax so paid.

The additional demand ralsed on the Company aggregates to INR 104.51 crores {31 March 2021: INR 97.60 crores). Against such demand, the Company has deposited INR 6.72 crores
fill date (31 March 2621 INR 6.46 cores). The management believes ihat the maiter will be dacided in favour of the Company, which is supporled by a {egal opinion obtained.
Censequently, no furlher provision has been considered necessary in these financial statements ir: this regard.

During earfier years, the Gompany had received a Property Tax demand from New Delhi Municipat Councit (NDMC) fer INR 7.17 crares for period from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2018, with
a view that the assessable value for calculation of proparty tax considered by Company is lower than the actual ought to be value, Against the amounl demanded, the Company had
deposited INR 2.02 crores in the form of regular tax payment and remaining INR 6.35 crores was deposiled ‘under protest’. On January 22, 2019, the malter was decided in favour of
Gompany by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. Thereafter, on September 11, 2019, the Company filed representalion before NDMG claiming a sum of INR 5.34 crores, Tili date, the NDMC
has nol provided any specific response for refund of such excess amount paid by the Company. Instead, NDMC issuec notice ws 72 ard proposed 1o increase rateable value w.e.f April 1,
2018, On December 30, 2019, NDMC has raised a futther demand order for INR 35.46 crores for period from April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2020 which was increased to INR 52.04 crores
for pariod uplo March 31, 2022.

The Cémpany is of the view that NDMC has not adhered e the orders of Supreme Courl and the demand raised for earlier years upto 2018 is not lenable. For peried from April 01, 2018 to
March 31, 2022, the Company, basis the legat opinion, s of he view ihal the assessable value considered for calculation of propesty tax is high and accordingly revised rate is not
acceptable keeping in view olher properlies in the vicinily and in same industry. Based on above, management believes that there is no impact required to be recorded in the Company's
financial statemenls

The Company had received a demand during the year 2012-13 amounting lo INR §.81 Crores {31 March 2021: .41 crores} from Land & Development Cffice {LDO), Minislry of Urban
Developmenl, Gevemment of india, lo regularise the alleged breaches relating to the property of New Delbi, This was the first time that the Company had received such demand letler
despite regular/ periodic inspection of the said property carried out by appropriate authorily. Based on the ceramunication received from LDO, the demand had been raised with
retrospeciive effect from 1985. The Company has disputed the afieged claim and the matter is pending before LDO which is supported by a legat opinion oblained by the Company.
Management believes that, the alleged demand is questionable, arbitrary and not tenable and is likely to be settled in favour of the Company. Pending such reassessment, Irability ir: this
regard has nol been recognised based on management's best eslimate.

Pursuant io a lease deed daled August 8, 2007, executed by and between the Jaipur Development Authorily (*JDA") and the Company, the JDA granted leasehold rights in favour of the
Company. The JDA has, frem time to time, sent lelters/notices directing the Company to clear its dues of annual lease rent for the period starling from the year 2008 onveards. The JDA last
issued a nolice to the Cempany on December 12, 2019 under Seclions 258 and 257 of the Rajasthan Land Revenue Act, 1856, ralsing a demand for outstanding dues of annual rent
ageregating up to INR 2.21 crores, coupled with interest payable amounting te approximately INR 1.78 crores. The malter is currently outstanding. Maragement believes thai there will be
no adverse impact on the Company in this regard and therefore no ability in this regard has baen recognised in these financial statements based on management's best estimale.

There are income tax cases outstanding from AY 2014-12 to AY 2017-18 with respect lo various matters Ike Interest capilalisation, 14A disallowance, amortisation of land, TOS elc. and
pending at various forums. The cases for some of the years (AY 2012-13 efc. ) have been decided in faveur of the Company wherein no further appeat has been filed by the depariment.
The management believes that siace ihe rature of disallowances is siméar in most of the assessment years, the chances of liabllity devolving on the Company are less Ixely. Accordingly,
no provision has been considered necessary in these financial statements.
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Year eaded Year ended
: M March 2022 31 March 2021
42 Commilmenis
{a} Capital Commitmenits 39,08 67.65
Eslimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
(b} Other Commitments 21433 214.33
Estimated amount of export obligalion
{¥he Gompany has imporied Capital Goods under the Export Promotion Capltal Goods Schems, of the Govemment of India, at concessienal
rates of duly on an undertaking to fulfilf the quantified export).
43  Employee Benefits
{a) Post employment benefit - defined contribution plan
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss
contribution towards Provident Fund and other fund 81 4.34

{b)  Leave Obligations - defined benefit plan
The Company has a scheme of encashment of Jeave o leave with pay subjecl 1o certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject 1o certain limits, for future encashment. The
liabllity is determined on the basis of acluariat valuation using Projecled Unit Credit Method of unutilizad on feave enlitlaments an balance sheet date. The scheme is unfunded.

{c)  Gratuity - defined benefit plan
The Gompany has a post employment defined benefit scheme in the form of graluity. Under the scheme, employzes are entitled o gratuity benefits based on fifteen days salary {basic plus dearnass
aflowarnice) for each compleled year of service. The aforesaid banefit accrues on comgletion of five years of service. The Company’s obligation towards such gratuily benefits are determined on ths
basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit method of the Company's period end obligation under the scheme. Difference between the Company's obligation so determined and year end
value of the assets of the refaled graluily fund is recognised as chargs for the period.

The trustees of the Gratuily Fund has enlrusled the adminiséralion of the fund to HDFC Slandard Life Insurance Co. Lid,

The fellowing Table sats forth the pardiculars in respect of the aforesaid Gratuity fund of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

Present value Fair value of plan
- Net Amount
of ohligation assets
1] Ohligation as at 1 April 2020 13.66 264 11.12
Gurrent Service cost 1143 C.01 1.2
Interest costlincems 0.92 017 078
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 2.05 0.18 4.88
Remeasurements {gains)fiosses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Change in Financial assumplions {0.23) - {0.23)
- Experlence Varlance (i.e Actual Experience vs assumgtions) {1.23) - (1.23)
- Relum on plan assel, Excluding amount recognised in nat interest expense - (0.34) 0.34
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (1.46) (0.34) {1.12)
Confributions by employer - 0.35 (0.35)
Benefits paid {0.77) (0.67) (0.10)
Optigation as at 31 March 2021 13.48 2.08 11.42
(i}  Obligation as at 1 April 2021 $3.48 2,06 11.42
Curent Service cost 0.98 - 0.96
Interest cost/inceme 0.41 - 041
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 1.36 - 1.36
Remeasurements (gains)flosses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
- Change in Financial assumptions (0.25) - {0.25)
- Experience Variance (i.e Acluat Experience vs assumplions) (0.49) - {0.48)
- Rstum on plan asset, Excluding amount recognised in net inlerest expense 0.17 (0.12) 0.28
Total amount recognised in Cther Comprehensive Income {0.57} {0.12} 10.44)
Conlribulions by employer 0.40) - {0.10)
Benefits paid {1.08) (0.50) {0.58)
Obligation as at 31 March 2022 13.10 1.43 11.66

The expected retorn on plan assets is determined after laking into consideration composilion of plan assats held, historicat zesults of returs on plant assets, Company's policies for plant asset
management and other ralevant factors,

{IV) The net liability disclosed above relates te the aforesaid Gratuity Plan {Funded) is as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair
Value of Plan Assets:
Prasent Value of funded cbligation at the end of the period e 13.10 13.48
Fair Value of Plan Assels at the end of the pariod T, 1.43 2.06
Net Liability recegnised in the Balance Sheet B RN 11.65 11,42
(V) Principal Actuarial Assumption Used:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount Rates 6.63%-7.12% 6.66% - 8.68%
Expecled Safary increase rates # 5.00% 5.00%
Inffation Rale 6.00% 5.00%
IALMIALM{06-08)

Mortaiily table 100% of IALM 2012-14

Ultimate

# The eslimate of future safary increases considerad in acluarial valualicn takes into account facters like inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
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(v}

(vt}

(Vi

The net liability disclosed above relates to the aforesaid Gratuity Plan (Funded) is as follows:
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

The major calegories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of tofa! plan assets are as follows:
Fund with HDFC Standard Life 1.43 206

Maturity Prefile of Defined Benefit Obligation
‘The contribution expecled lo be made by the Company for the period anded 31 March, 2023 is INR 10.55 crores.

The expected matuzity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follows:

1 Year Zto 5 Year 6 to 10 Year > 10 Year Total
As at 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation 518 307 361 - a7 20.33
As at 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation 4.72 4,00 4.06 12.09 24.87

Sensitivily Analysis

The following table present a sensilivily analysis to ons of the relevant acluariat assumption, helding other assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affecled
by changes in Ihe relevant actuarial assumplions that were reasonably possible at the reporling date.

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Increase Decrease crease Decrease
Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 12.68 13.39 13.01 13.86
% Change Gompared lo base due to sensitivity -3.86%)| 4.16% -4.40% 4.78%
Salary Growth Rate {-{+ 0.5%) 13.40 12.87 13.87 13.00
% Change Compared te base dus to sensitivity 4.24% -3.99% 4.83% -4.48%
Allrition Rate(-/+ 10%) 13.03 13.01 13.42 13.42
% Change Compared tc base due fo sensitivity 0.14% -0.14% -0.02% 0.02%
Mortality Rate(-1+ 10%) 13.03 13.02 13.42 13.42
% Changa Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.02% -0.02% G.03% -0,03%|

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while hotding all olher assumptions censtant. In pracice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of fhe assumplions may
be comelaled. When calcuiating the sensilivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuariai assumptions the same method {present value of he defined benefit obligation calculated with the
profecled unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has baen applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The melhods and typas of assumptions used in preparing lhe sensilivity analysis did not change compared Lo lhe prior period.

Risk associates with plan provisions
Valualions are performed on cerlain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and olher regutatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Company is exposed to various fisks in providing the
above graluily benefit, the most significant of which are as foliows:

Interesl Rale risk ; The plan exposes the Company fo the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increass in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and wil thus resuit
in an increase in the vaiue of the liabilily {as shown in financial statemenls}.
Liquidily Risk : This is the risk that the Company is not able to meel he shorl term gratuily pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of suificient cashicash equivalents to meot ihe liabilities.

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefil plar is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan: participants in fulure. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in
future for plan participants from the rate of increase In salary used to delermine the present value of obligalion will have a bearing on the plan's liabifily.

Demographic Risk : The Company has used certain mortalily and ailrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed 10 the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse
compared to the assumption.

Regulatory Risk : Gralufty benefit is paid in accordance wilh the requirements of the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972 {as amended from time lo fime). There is a risk of change I regulations requiring
higher gratuity payouts e.g. Increase in the maximum limit or gralully of INR 20,00,000 and upward revision of maximum gratuity imit will result irs graluily plan obligatton.
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44 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosuras pursuant {o Ind AS 24

9}

{a)

(b}

&

iy

Relaled Parties .
Subsidiary {Gonirol relationship exists)

Apegjay Charler Private Limited
Apesfay Holels & Restauranis Private Limiled
Apeejay Norh-West Holels Privale Limited
Key Mapagement Personnel
Wr. Vijay Dewan

Ms. Priya Paul

Mr. Karan Paul

M. Atul Khosla

Mr. Debanjan Mandal

Mr. Suresh Kumar

Ms Raginl Chopra

Ms Suneela Raddy

Ms Shalini Xeshan

Ms. Sujala Guin

Mr. Sujeel Kumar Singh

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Singh

Mr. Vikas Ahluvalia

Mr. Rohit Arora

Ms. Aparajila Brahma

Mr. Gurprest Singh

Ms. Ruchika Mehtz

Mr. Sharad Devran

wr. Yazad Marfalia

Mr. Ajil Singh Garcha

Ciher

Greal Easlern Stores Privale Liniled { formerly known as Flurys Gonfectionary Private Tirnited}

MSA

Particulars of Transactions with Related Parties

A) Subsidiary Company [Apeejay Charter Private Limited)
- Hiring Charges

B} Subsidiary Company (Apeejay Hotels & Restaurants Private Ltd)

- Loan given

- Loan repald

- Inlerast Income

- Sale of goods

C} Subsidlary Company {Apeejay Nerth-West Private L1td)
- Loan given

- Interest Income

C) Close members of the family of Key Management Personnel
MSA
Mangement Consuliancy Service

D) Key managerment personnel of the Company
- Managenal Remuneralion
Mr. Vijay Dewan
Director's Remuneration
Shost-lerm employment benefils
Posl-employment benefils
Ms. Priya Paul
Shor-ferm employmant benefits
Mr. Karan Paul
Mangement Consultancy Service
Mr.Atul Khosfa
Shon-term employment henefits
Post-employmant benefits

Ms. Shalini Keshan
Shori-term employmenl benefils
Post-employment benelits

Ms. Sujata Guin

Shortderm employment bengefils
Post-employment benefils

Relaticnship

Managing Direclor

Chairperson & Whels Time Direclor
Mon-exzculive Direclor

Chief Finangral Officer (CFQO)
Non-executive Direclor

Indepandé[‘{i Directar

Independend Diractor

independent Diractor

Company Secrelary

Vice Presidont - Human Resources

Vice Presidenl - Projects and Enginesring
Direclor - Operalions and Development
Generaf Manager and MNational Head
Area General Manager

Corporale Direclor - Finance

Corporale Director - Finance

Corporate Director - Communicalions and Public Relations
Regional Director - Food Produciion
Regional Director & Head of Sales

Area General Manager

Relationship

Investing Parly in respect of which the Company is ap Assaciale
Close mambers of the family of Key Management Persannel

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.01 0.01
- 0.30
2.26 1.20
0.16 0.29
- 0.0
0.58 -
0.03 -
0,56 -
4.19 247
078 0.34
3.3 i.18
1.62 162
2.00 0.78
0.18 0.1%
017 0.12
0.01 .01
.79 0.55
0.08 0.05
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Mr. Surjeet Kumar Singh
Shori-lerm employment benefils
Post-employment henefils

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Singh
Shorf-term employment benelits
Post-employment benefils

Mr. vikas Ahluwalia
Shod-lerm employmenl benafils
Posl-employment benefits

hir. Rohit Arora
Short-ferm employment benefils
Post-employment benalils

Ms. Aparajita Brahma
Short-lerm #mploymenl benefits
Posl-employmenl benelils

Mr. Gurpreet Singh
Shorl-lerm employment beasfiis
Post-employment benefils

Ms. Ruchika Mehiz
Short-term employment benefits
Posl-employment benefits

Mr. Sharad Dewsan
Short-lemm employment benefils
Post-employment benefits

Mr. Yazad Marfafia
Short-lerm amployment benefits
Post-employment bensfils

Mr. Ajit Singh Garcha
Shod-term employment benefits
Pasl-employment benefits

-~ Sitting Fees
ts. Priya Paul
Mr. Karan Paul
Mr. Vijay Dewan
Mr, Suresh Kumar
Ms Suneela Reddy
Ms Ragini Chepra
Mr. Debanjan Mandai

*Belaw rounding ¢ff norms

{iif) Balances Outstanding as at the end

A) Subsidiary Company

- Apegjay Charler Privale Limited
Invesiments.

- Apeejay Hotels & Reslaurants Privale Limiled

invesimenls

Lean Given
Interest Accured
Corsporale Guaranlee
Rent & Olher Charges Recoverable

- Apecjay North West Holels Private Limited
investmenls
Loan Given
Interest Accured

B) Investing Party in respect of which the Company isan Associale

Great Eastern Stores Private Limited ( formerty known as Flurys Confectionary Private limited)

Purchass Consideralion Payable (Refer note 52)

) Close members of the family of Key Management Personnel
MSA
Mangemenl Consullancy Service

D) Key Management personnel
Mr. Karan Paul

Payable toward Managemesnt Consultancy charges
Ms. Priya Paul

Payabls toward Commission charges
Mr. Vijay Dewan

zmployee benafil expenses
te.Alul Khosta

Employee bensfit expenses
Ms. Shatini Keshan

Employee benefit expenses
Ms. Sujata Guin

Employee bansfif expenses
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Singh

Employes bensfit expenses

. 0.18
0.0
0.38 0.28
0.10 0.09
0.36 0.22
0.03 0.04
0.66 0.49
o.08 0.08
065 0.44
008 0.02
0.57 0.41
0.07 0.05
0.58 0.36
0.02 0.03
.27 0.39
0.0z 0.03
0.16 D.22
0.1 0.11
0.30 0.42
0.26 0.26
- 0.00
. 0.00
* 0.00
. 0.00
* 0.0¢
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

0.01 .01
0.01 2.0f
0.15 2.48
0.15 0.28
0.38 0.28
. 0.i2
0.G61 .01

.68 -

0.03 -
.27 0.27

0.56 -

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

108 .38
1.36 1.18
1.68 1.48
0.2¢6 o.16
o.03 0.03
015 0.99
0.04 0.03
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* Below rounding off narms

45 Lease Commitments

U]

i

{a

)

M. Vikas Ahluwalia

Employee benefil expenses 0.03 0.04
Mr. Rohit Arora

Employee benefil expenses 0.07 0.08
Ms. Aparajila Brahma

Employee benefit expenses . . 0.10 010
Mr. Gurpreel Singh

Employee bapefit expenses 0.03 a4
Ms. Ruchika Mehla

Employee benelit expenses 0.05 0.06
M. Sharad Dewan

Employes benefit expenses - 0.16
#r. Yazad Marfatia

Employee benefil expenses 0.02 017
Mr. Ajil Singh Garcha

Employse benelit expenses 0.0z 0.22

HMote: The post employment benefits disclosed above are eslimated basis and'acfuat benefils may dilfar since the actuarial valualion is carred oul for the Company as a whole and nol individually.
Company as a lessee
The Company as a lessee has entered inlo various lease conlracts, which includes lease of land, olfice space, club, reslaurant and guest house. Before the adoplion of Ind AS 116, lhe
Company classified sach of ils leases (as lessee) al lhe inceplion dale as eilher a finance lease oran operating lease.
The Company also has cerain leases of guest house wilh lease lerms of 12 menths or lzss. The Company applies the ‘shori-lerm lease’ recognition exemplions for hese leases,
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (inciuded under Interest bearing loans and herrowings) and movement during the year;
As at As at
ticul
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning 15.46 12.48
Addition during the year 11.56 4.10
Finance cost during lhe period {refer note-36} 2.05 1.24
Delelion during the period 0.01) {0.30)
Payment made during lhe perod (4.31} {216}
Balance as al end 24.77 1545
Current 4.08 211
MNon cumrent 20649 13.35
24.77 15.48
a) There are no resticlions or covenants imposed by leases.
) Refer note 38 for rental expense recorded for shor-term leases and low value leases,
<) There are no amounl payable lewards variabla fease expense recegnised for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
d} The maturily analysis of Jease liabllities are disclosed in note 50.
e} There are no lease which have ot yot commenced to which lessee is committed {if any)
The following are 1he ameunts recognised in profit or loss:
As al As at

|
Partizulacs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation expense of righl-lo-use assels (refer nole -37} 571 437
interesl expense on fease liabilifies (refer nole - 36} 205 134
Expense relaling lo shori-larm leases gncluded in rent expense) frefer note - 3B} 2.14 167
Telal amoual recegnised in profit or loss for the year 9.89 7.38

(i)
[iv}

)
i)

(i)

The Company's tolal cash outflow for leases for the period ended 31 March 2022 is INR 4.31 crores,

Property plant and equipment pledged as securily: refer nole 22 & 27 for informalion of property plant and equipment pledged as a security for borrowing by Company. The tille deeds of

immavable property included In right of use assets amounting to Rs. 15.38 croms (nal block) has been pledged with banks against borrowing taken by lhe company.

Company as 2 lessor

The Company has given cerlaln porlion of a building in Hyderabad undar cancellable operaling lease. Tenure of such fease extends to 25 years with an oplion to renew il for a fusther period

of 25 years. This lease agreement infer-alia includes escalalion clauses to comy for i
Crores {31 March 2021: INR 1.53 crores) has been recognized in (he Siatement of Profit and Loss in keeping wilh lease amangemenls.

Nalion, oplion for r 1s efc. Lease income (rental and service charges) aggregaling INR 1.81

The Company has ertered inlo cancellable operaling feases wherein some area of the propsrties have been leased for shops, towers, elc. Tenure of such feases is generzally one year vith an
oplion for rencwal. Lease income aggregating INR 2.25 Crores (31 March 2021 1 INR 1.60 Crores} has baen recognized in the Slatement of Profit and Loss in keeping vith lease

amangements.

48 The Company is mainly engaged in the single segment business of hoteliering in India. Hence, no separate gecgraphical disaggregalion dene.
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47 GSR Expenditure

4

k)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 3% March 2021

{a8) Gross amounl required to be spent by the Company during the year - 0.8
{b) Amount spentin Cash during tha ysar on:

Consiruclionfacquisition of any assel - -

Proteclion of national heritage 0.12 -

Secial devslopment and charilabie aclivilias - 007
{c) Amounl spent during the year ending on 31 March 2022:
Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in Cash Tolal
i} _Construclionfacquisillon of any asset - - -
i} On puiposes other than (i) abova .12 - 0.12
d) Delails relaled 1o spant / unspsnt obiigalions during the year ending on 31 March 2022:
Particulars in cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total
i} _For ongeing project .00 - 0.00
I} On purposes other than (i) above - - -
() Amount spenl during the year ending on 31 March 2021:
Pardiculars in cash Yet to be paid in Gash Total
i} __ Construclion/acquisilion of any asset - - -
i) On purpeses other than (i) above .07 - .07

Details refated 1o spent / unspent abligations during the year ending on 31 March 20234:
Opening balance| Amount requized to be spent during the year|
[

} Delails related o CSR spent against ongolng projecls during the financiat year ending on 31 March 2022

Opening balance| Amount requtred to be spent during the year| Amount spent during the year|
0.12 | - 0.12 |

Amount spent during the year| Closing balance
.00 0.00
Closing balance|

*The company has enlered Into an MOU wilh the Minislry of Tourism, Govl of India, Minislry of Culture, Govi. of India and Archaelogical Survey of India on Septerber 16, 2018 for adopling Jantar Mantar, New Delhi
under "Adopt a Heritage" scheme. The Company has deposited INR 0.12 cf during the FY 2021-22 against CSR abligation of FY 20-21 In the unspenl CSR account and has utilised such unspehi CSR amounl during the

cirant finaneclal vaae

#The cornpany has spent INR 0.00 cr during Lhe FY 21-22 againsl CSR obligation of INR Nil for the financial year and the same shall be sel off in the succeeding 3 financial yaars.

Capitat Management
For lhe purpeses of the Company’s capilal managemenl, capilal includes Tssued capita?, all other equity reserves and long term borrewed capitat less reperted cash and cash equivalenls,

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is fo maintain an efficient capilal slructure to reduce lhe cost of capilal, support the corporate siralegy and lo maximise shareholdec’s value.

The Company's policy is to borrow primarily through banks to maintain sufficient fiquidity. These borrowings, logether wilh cash generaled from operations are utilised for operalions of lhe Company including periadic
capital projects underlaken for lhe company's existing projecls . The Campany monitors capital on the basis of cost of capilal. The Company manages ils capital slucture and makes adjusiments in light of changes in
scanomic cendilions. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ralio, which is net debl divided by folal capilal plus net debt. The Company includes wilkin net debt, inlerest bearing loans and bomowings, less cash

and cash equivalents.

The following fable summaries ihe capilal of the Company:

. As at As at

Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-cument Borrowings (inciuding currenl maturilies) 476.84 488,60
Current Borowings 144,60 123.72
Less: Cash and cash squivalents (6.74) {6.76)
TOTAL BORROWING (NET) 814.71 §35.56
Toral equity 506.98 536.51
TOTAL CAPITAL (EQLATY+ NET DEBT) 1,i21.68 1,122.07
Gearing ralio 54.80% 52.19%

Mo changes were made o {he objaclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and year ended 31 March 2021.

8
gy
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49 Fair Value Measuremeanis

{i} Financial instruments by category

As at 31 March 2022 As al 31 March 2021
FUTPL: FVTOCH Amortised Gost Totai FVTPL* EvrTocr: Anertised Cost Total

Financial Assets

Inveslments

- Equily Instruments .02 - 0.03 0.05 0.02 - 003 .05

Trade receivables - - 17.60 17.60 - - 1790 17.90

Loans - - 7.06 7.06 - - 11.28 11.38

Cash and cash equivaleat - - 6.74 6.74 - - 6.76 6.76

Other bank Lalances - - 019 G.19 - - 0.21 0.2%

Security depotils - - 8.76 .76 - - . 9.04 9,04

Olher financial assels - - 10.44 10.44 - - 11.24 11.24
Total 0,02 - 51.82 51.84 $5.02 - £B.58 £6.58
Financial Liabilitles

Boirovings - - 621.44 621.44 - - 592.32 532.32

Interesl acerued - - 0.65 0.55 - - 0.38 0.38

Trade payables - - 748 37.48 - - 44.34 44.34

Cther financial Jiabilities - - 2057 20.57 - - 18.45 18.45
Total - - 680,64 80,04 - - 655.49 655,49

“* Thete are na financlat assets or financial iabiliies rouled threugh FYOGH

* Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category ate measured at [alr value vith sl changes ized in the it of Prefit and Loss.

(i) Fair Value

The falr values el financial assets and liabilities are inctuded at the amouni that vould be received lo sell an asset or pald te transfer a Habllity in an orderly transaction between market parlicipants at Ihe measucement date. tdethods and assumplions
used to estimate the falr values are consistentin all the perdads. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimale the falr values.

The management assessed that fair velues, of trade receivables, foans , cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, security deposits, other fimancial assets , currenl borovings, bade payables and other financial llabililles , approximate 1o thefr
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term malurities of these Inst ts. Further, t also d the carrylng amount of certain non-curient financlal liabiliies and non-cumrent borravdngs 2t Aoating Inferest rales vwhich arc a reasonatle
approximalion of their falr values and the dillersnce beiween the canmying amounts and fair values is not expecied to be significant.

{ili) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carying amoust of financlal assets and Nnancal liabililies measured at amarlised cost i the financlal statements are a raasonable approximation of their fair values sinee lhe Company does nol anticipate Ihat e carrying armount vrould be
significantly different from the vaiues that would evenlually be received or sefiled.

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Carrying Value Fair Value Canying Value Fair Value

Financial Assets
Trade receivables 17.60 17.60 v.ee 17.90
Loans, 7.08 7.06 $1.38 i1.38
Cash and cash equivalent 6.74 6.74 6.76 E78
Other bank balances .19 o012 .21 o.21
Security deposits 4.78 .75 .04 9.04
Olher financlal assels 10.44 10,44 11.24 1124
Total financial Assels 51.79 51.79 56,63 56.53
Financial Liabllities

Borrowings 621.44 621.44 592.32 58232

interest sccrued 0.55 0355 038 0.28

Trade payables 37.48 37.48 4434 4434

Other financial liabilities 20.57 2057 1845 18.45
Total financial Liabilltias 6§80.04 680,04 655.49 665.43
{iv) Fair value hierarchy
This section explalns the judgemenls and estimales made in determining the fair values of the financial s that are (&) r ised and meastred at falr valus and (b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed inthe

Asg at 31 Barch 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total Level 1 Loysl 2 Level 3 Tolal

Financial Assets

Investments

- Eqully Instrumenls - - 0.02 0.02 - - .02 0.02
Total - - 0.02 0.02 - - 0.02 0.02

Level 1: Leve! 1 hierarchy includes Snanclal instruments measured using quoted prices. This Includes listed equity stuments and mutual funds that have net assel valus as slatad by the issuers in e published slalements. The falr value of all equily
Instroments which are traded in the stock exchanges Is valted using the closing price @s at (he reporting period.

tevel 2: The fair value of financlal instuments Lhat are ot traded in an aclive market {for example, over-the caunter derivatives) is defermined using valuation lechnigues viich maximize the use of observable markel dala and rely as litile as possible
o enlity specific estimates. If all significant inpuls required to fair value an instument are obsarvable, the helnument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If ane or more of Ihe significant Inputs is net based on ebservable market dafa, the Inslrument is Included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securilies included in levet 3.

Tha Company's policy is to recognise transfers inlo and transfers oul of fair value hierarchy levels as at Ihe end of the reporting period. Thers are ne fransfers bebwveen level 1, lsvel 2 of level 3 fair value measurements during the year ended 31 March
2022 and year ended 3t tlarch 2021

Some of tho Gompany's inancial assets are carried at fair value for which Level 3 inputs havo heen used.
Valuation inputs and relationship to fair valus and Vahzatlon process :

As pef [he Gompany palicles, whenever any invesiment is mada by the company In equity securilies, the same is made cilher vilh some stralegic ebjeclive or as 2 par of contraciual arrangement.

Vfaluation technique used Lo defermine falr value include

Investmant in unquoted equity shares in Green infra Wind Farms Limited and Green Infra Wind Generalion Limited amounting te INR 0.02 Crores {31 March 2021: INR 0.02 Crores) are made pursuant Lo the contract for procuring electicity supply at the
hotels units. Investment in sald comparies is not usually traded fin market. Considering the terms of the electricity supply contract and best Information available in the market, cost of investment is considered as {alt value of the investmenls.

Oiher investments are nol maleriatin nature.
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50 Financiai Risk Management

The Company's princlpat financial flabiliics comprise of barrewlags, Irade and olher payables and other francial Habllilies. The main purpose of (hese financial liabilitfes is to finance and suppor the operations of the Gerpany. The
Company’s principal financial assets include lrade and olher recelvables, losns, investmenls and czsi & cash equivalents that derive directly from ls operalions.

The Company’s business aclivilios are exposed 1o a varfely of fisks including liquidily risk, credit risk and markel fisk. The Company seeks to minimize polential adverse elfecls of lkese risks by managing them through a struclured
process of idenlification, assessment and priotitizalion ef risks followed by coardinated effors to monitor, minimizo and mitigale Ihe impact of such risks on ils financial perfarmance and capilal. For this purpose, the Company has
taid comprehensive risk sssessment and minimization/mitigation procedures and are reviewed by Ihe managemenl from lime fo lme. Thess pracedures are reviswed to ensure lhal executive managemenl contrals risks by way of
properly defined framework. The Gempany daes not enler inle derivative financial nstruments for speculative purpases,

(A} Credit Risk

Credit risk refers lo risk of financia! 1oss Lo the Company if customers of counlerpardies fail lo meet their conlractual obligations. The Company is exposed fo credit risk from its eperaling aclivities {mainly lrade receivables} and from
its Invesfing aclivities (primarily daposll wilh banks).

Credit Risk Managemenl
Provislon for expecled credil loss

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Estimaled gross | Expected Cre<lit| Carying Amount
carrying amount at| Loss net of impaimment
default provision
Tnveshinenis - 2.02 - - --0.02
Trade Receivables 29.34 11.74 17.60
Loans 20.04 322 16.82
Cash & Cash equivalants 5.74 - 6.74
Cther bank balance 0.1¢ - 019
Cther financial asssls . 11.77 1.33]. 10.44
68.10 16.29 51.81
As at 31 March 2021
Pasticulars Estimated gross |Expected Credit} Carying Amount
carrying amount at Loss aet of impalment
default pravision

Investments 0.02 - 0.02
Trada Receivabies 3025 12.35 17.90
Loans 23.64 3.22 2042
Cash & Gash equivalents 8.78 - 6.76
Othar bank bafance 0.21 - 021
Othier financiat assels 12.67 1.33 11.24
73.45 16.91 56.65

{a) Trade receivables

Trade receivables vonsist of large number of cuslomers, spread across geographical areas. In order fo mitigale 1he fsk of financial loss fiem defzulters, the Company has an ongoing credit evaluation process in respect of
customers wlio are allowed credil pertod. In respect of walk-n cusiomers the company does not allowr any credil period and tharfore, is not exposad o any credh rdsk.

Tn general, it is presumed Lhat credil risk has sigaificanlly Increased since [nilial recegniion if the payments ace more than 90 days past due. The Company has a policy Te provide for specific receivables which are overdue for a
peried over 180 days. On accounl of adoplion of Ind AS 108, lhe Company also uses expected credit loss model to assess fhe impairment loss or revarsal hereof,

Reconciliation of allowance for credit impgired — Trade receivables

Pasticulars Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loss allowance af the beginning 1235 1143
Change in allowance during ihe parod {062} i.22
Loss allowance al the end 11.74 12.35

{b) Deposits and financial assets {Other than trade receivables) :
The Company maintains exposwre in Cash and cash equivatenls and term depasils wilh banks. Invesiments of surplus are made within sssigned credit limils wilk approved counlerparties who mest lha 1hreshold requirements with
respect lo ratlngs, Tnancial strength, credit spreads ele, Counlerparty credit limils ars setto minimize concentration risk ang are reviewed on a peradic basis.

Reconciliation of allowance for credil impaired — Clher linancial assets

Particulars ' Year ended.

3 March 2022 31 March 2021
t.oss allowance al the beginning 1.33 1.33
Allowance Tar expecled credil loss{net) - -
Luss allowance at the end 1.33 1.33

Recangllialion of aliowancs for credit impaired —~ Loang

Particulars Period ended

31 March 2022 31 March 202%
Loss allowance at the beginning 3.22 2.76
Allowance for expecled credit loss{net} - 0.46
Loss allowance al the end- 3.22 322

{8} Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk implies that lhe Company may not be able to mest ils obligations assocfated wilh ifs financial liabillies. The Company manages its liquidily fsk on the basis of the business plan that ensures that the funds required for
financing the business operalions and mesling finaneia Nabilities are avallable in a limely mannes and in the curency required al oplimal costs, The Management regularly moniiors rofling forecests of the Gompany's liquidity
position o ensure il has sufficient cash en an ongoing basis 1o meet operational fund requirements.

Addiionaily, the Company has committed fund and non-fund hased credit lines front banks which may be drawn anytime based o Company’s fund requiremens. Ths Company mainlains a cautious iquidity sirategy with positive
cash balance and undrawn bank iines thraughout the perdod.

The following are 1he remaining contraclual maturities of Enancial liabilities at e reporting date, The anounts represented betow includes contraclual interest payments.

Conlractual maturity of financial Habilily

Upto 1 year 1 year to § year More than & years Totat
INR INR INK INR
3§ March 2022
Bomowings {including cument maturities)” 147114 468.28 87.48 702.98
Lease Liabiliies 408 11.73 596 24.77
Trade payable 3748 - - 37.48
Gther financtal labilities 21.12 - - 2112
208.7% 480.12 9542 786.23
31 March 2021
Borrowings (including current maturifiss)® 126.44 464.75 141.08 73227
| ease Liabllitles 3.02 12.08 12.99 28.09
Trade payable 44.34 - - 44.34
Other financlal Fabifilies 12.80 ¢.03 - 18.83
192.60 476,86 164,07 §23.54

* includes luture interest payments
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[C} Market Risk

Warket risk is lhe risk What e fair vaiue of lulure cash fow of fnancial nstruments may fucluate because of changes in market conditions. Market risk broadly comprises three fypes of risks namely currency risk,
interest rale risk and price fsk (for aquily insiumerns). Tha above risks may affect the Company’s income and expenses and / of value of ils investinents. The Company's exposure te and management of these risks

are explained befow

{l} Forelgn currency risk

The predominant cumency of Ihe Company's revenue and operaling cash flows is Indian Rupaes (INR). The Company's reperied dabt has an exposure to borewings held in LS dollars. Movements in foreign exchange

rales can affect the Company's reported profit, net assels.

{a} Foreign currency risk exposure

{NR Equivalent of USD

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Foreign currency loan payable

2485

Net Exposure to Fareign Currency Risk

24,85

{b) Sensifivity

A fiuclualion in the exchange rates of 5% with olher conditions remaining unchanged yould have the following effect on Company’s profit before laxes for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 33 March 2021:

Impact on Profit befere tax

Year ended 31 Year enced 31
March 2022 March 2021
USD Sensitivity
INRUSD - Increase by 5% * - {1.24),
INR/USE - Decrease by 5% * - 1.24

{Il) Interest rate risk

The Gompany's exposure to risk of change in market interest rates refates primarily to its debtin!
fixed rate. II's borrowings are at foating rales and its future cash flows vil fluctuate because of changes in markel inleresl rales.

terest obligations. The Company uses interest rate swaps to achisve lhe company policy of malnlaining ils borrowings at

The Company's fixed rate borowings are not subject 1o interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neiler the camying amount nor the cash flows vl flucluate because of a change in market rate interest.

{a} Interest rate risk exposure

The expasure of lhe Company's borrowings to interest rate changss at ihe end of 1he reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 March

2022 As at 31 March 2021

Total borrowings {including current maturities)
Variable rale borrovings 615.98 586.06
Fixed rate borrowings £.48 5,69
621.44 592.57

As al the end of the reporting peried, the Company had the foliowing variable rate borowings:

As at 3T March

2022 As at 31 March 2021
Variable rate borrowings 515.96 586.98
Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk 615.96 586.98

{b) Sensitiviiy

Impact on profit before tax

As at 31 March
2022

As at 31 March 2021

Interest rate sensitivity {Including interest on USD loan)
interest Rales - Increase by 60 basls points (50 bps) '
Interest Rates - Decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) *

(2.98}
2965

(2.79)
279

* Holding all other variakle constant




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Hotes to Standalone Financial Stalements as at 34 Masch 2022
(A8 amounts In INR Crores, unless otheredse staled)

81 Assets ptedged as securlty
The carrylng amounts of certain categories of assets pledged as securly for current and nen-current homowings pursuant to tha requirements of Ind AS 2, Ind AS 16, Ind AS 38 and Ind AS 107:

Partictlars As al As af
31 Match 2022 31 March 2021

Current Assets
Inventories 869 858
Others assets 0.84 5642
Total current assels pledged as secwily (A} T0.53 65,98
Hencurrent assels
Froperty, plant and equipment ( including ROU) &09.27 59315
Totat non-currents assels pledged as security (8) 508.27 583.15

679.81 85912

Tolal assets pledged as secwiity (A+B)

- This space has been lef blank
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52 During previous years, owing to COVID 18 pandemlc the Company wilness
prefit for the Conipany. As of March 31, 2022, the Company's cuirernt iabl
the 2nd of the financial yest (herein refemed ty a5 the “Sharf Term Borsowings’). Further, the Comgany has not met ce
&5 & going concern. As mitigation, the Cempany has prajecled improved cash flows from operalans far naxt year, iL also plans to re-finance existing Short-Term Borravuings with long term funds (has already secured le

ed softef revenues and sharp [2'F in occupancy levels. b the cunent year, with tha unlocking of restriclions, there fias besn improvement in operations of the Gompany resulting in cash

ies have exceedad its cument assets by Rs. $57.17 crores prmarily on account of shorterm berewings and current inatidliss of lang tarm botrewings faling due within 12 months from
rtaln of the debl covenants in ceraln loan agresments, These eveatsf canditions may cast significent daubt on the Cempany's 2bility lo continue
nder’s approval fot the samn) and has

obtained the curient repayment schedule and confimations from {he lenders, Basis the abova, e management has assessed thal thers are no Implicalions on Ihese Ind AS Standalane Financial statements. Accardingiy, (he Company has prepared these Ind AS
Standalane financlat statements on a gaing concern basis,

&

o

Rativ Analysls and Its elements'™

Ralio Humerator 31st March 2072 315t March 2021 % change Reason for variance
Cutcent ratlo Cuirent Assets 0.31 0.32 -3.24%%)
Deht- Equity Ratio Tolal Debt 123 1.10 11.03%;
Earnings far debl service = Mat [ebt service = fnterest & Duc to d inthel
Dabt Service Coverage ratlo prafil afier taxes + ton-cash Lease Payments + Principat 027 0.23) -207.34% du‘:ﬁi;m?’::::e n thie loss
operating expanses Repayments
N N Het Profits alter taxes - Praforence B .,] Due to decrease in the profit
Ralum on Equily ratio Cridand Average Shareholder's Equily (1.71) {4.28) B0 1 1ing e year
Due to Incrase in lhe sales
inventary Turnover ratio Cos1 of goods sold Average nventary 3.54 277 28,10%|duiing the yzar as compare to
previous year
‘ § Due o Incrase In tha sales
Het credil sales = G edil sall
Trade Recaivable Tontover Ratio ot crediL sales = bross crecil 53022 | 1y arage Trade Recoivable 13.82 9.48 45.84%duting Whe year as compare o
- safes return pravious year
N _ Duo to incrase In the inventory
it h: = Gro: it
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio el ;'ed‘ pure ;5“ ) 55 IR ] swaraga Trade Payables 092 056 83.80%| purcnases during Lhe yeat as
purchases - purchase return compare {o previods year
) . Due to Incrase I the sales
Viorking capital = G 13
Hat Capitat Turnaver Ratia Mot satas - Tolat sales - sates return| o9 Copoa = SUTER (162} (1.30) 24.98%}during the year as compare to
assets - Currenl liahilities
previous yeat
Het sales = Total sales - sales pue te dacrease in the profit
ii e 0.12) . -T1.45%
Met Profit ralio Net Profil et 10.12)] {041} T1.45% uring the year
Capital Emptoyed = Tangible oue fo d 1 the prott
Return on Capital Employed Earnings bafore interost and Laxes |Net Warth + Total Debl + 204 b.01 149,47%) du':;u;’mzc;z::“ e pro
Daferred Tax Lizbllity
Return on nvestiment Interest {Finance Incama) fnvestinent A HA HA

**Basd or the requinsments of Scheckite il

B4 Provious perod's figures are rearrangedfregrouped to conform to current petlod's classiftcation, whefever considerad necessary.
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